
 
 
 

Mrs J Wallace 
Head of Paid Service 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 6 March 2020 

 

MEETING OF COMMUNITY & RESOURCES  
COMMITTEE 

On: Monday 16 March 2020 At: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

To: Councillor R Hicks (Chair) 
Councillor D McGeough (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, A Dart, J Hutchings, 
K James, N Laws, R Lock and R Wiseman 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies for Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

2.   Minutes of the Community & Resources Committees (Pages 3 - 20) 

 Minutes – 20 January 2020 
Minutes – Budget Special - 3 February 2020 
Minutes – Special meeting - 17 February 2020 
 

3.   Action List (Pages 21 - 29) 

4.   Public Contributions  

 Public contributions in accordance with the current scheme 
 

5.   Forward Plan (Page 30) 



 
 

 

6.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the 
nature of their interest when the item is being considered. 
 

7.   Agreement of Agenda between Parts I and II  

8.   Urgent Matters of information to be brought forward with the permission of the 
Chair and the Committee  

9.   The Plough Arts Centre (Pages 31 - 34) 

 To receive the report of the Planning & Economy Manager 
 

10.   Beach Access - Request for Funding (Pages 35 - 39) 

 To receive the report of  the Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 

11.   Leisure Contract Options (Pages 40 - 42) 

 To receive the report of the Planning & Economy Manager 
 

12.   The Burrows Centre - Request for Additional Funding. (Pages 43 - 60) 

 To receive the report of the Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 

13.   Refugee Resettlement (Pages 61 - 64) 

 To receive the report of the Customers Support Manager 
 

14.   Business Rates Public House and Retail Relief Policy (Pages 65 - 74) 

 To receive the report of the Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 

15.   Exclusion of the Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10 
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

16.   PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  

17.   Application for Hardship Relief (Pages 75 - 78) 

 To receive the report of the Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 

 Meeting Organiser: Sandra Cawsey 
 

 



1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES MEETING 
 

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 
 

Monday, 20 January 2020 - 6.00 pm 
 
 

PRESENT Councillor R Hicks (Chair) 
 Councillor D McGeough (Vice-Chair) 

 
 Councillors C Bright, P Christie, A Dart, K James, N Laws, 

R Lock, R Wiseman, M Clarke and S Langford (substitute for 
Councillor Brenton) 

 
ALSO PRESENT J Wallace - Head of Paid Service 
 S Hearse - Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 S Dorey - Senior Solicitor 
 S Kearney - Planning & Economy Manager 
 H Bond - Estates Manager 
 A Redwood - Property and Procurement Manager 
 S Cawsey - Democratic Services Officer 
 K Brown - Democratic Services Officer 

 
 Councillors C Hodson, C Leather and P Pennington 

Mr S Dengate – Non Elected Member 
 
Approximately 50 members of the public 
 

65.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Hutchings and Brenton. 
 

66.    MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON 25 NOVEMBER 2019  
 
It was proposed, seconded and - 
 
Resolved:    
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2019 be signed as a correct 
record. 
 
(Vote:  For 9, Abstentions 2) 
 
 
Matters Arising:  
 
Minute 59 – Notices of Motion 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

 
Councillor Lock stated that following the good news with regard to Appledore Fire 
Station, clearly the contribution of £2,500 would not now be required.  
 
Minute 63 – Homelessness 
 
Councillor Christie agreed to forward a link to a BBC 3 film made by a Bideford 
Town Councillor who works with homelessness.  The film itself is based on Rough 
Sleepers within the Bideford area.  Democratic Services to forward the link to all 
Members. 
 

67.    ACTION LIST  
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) responded as follows to the two items stated 
on the Action List: 
 
Grants Scheme offered for property owners to repair properties 
 
This Scheme had been in operation many years ago and enabled private owners to 
access grants for home improvements.   Towards the end of the Scheme the 
monies received had been put in to “Wessex Investment Trust” .    
 
Now administered by Wessex Resolution CIC who are still offering Home 
Improvement Loans with the Council’s original funds.   The website highlights all 
the work they undertake. 
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) agreed the following: 
 

 To circulate a  link to the website 

 To speak to the Environmental Health & Community Safety Manager for an 
update 

 
The Chair, Councillor Hicks, requested that further information be presented at the 
next meeting.  
 
Payment of additional Council Tax on empty properties 
 
The number of long term empty properties subject to additional Council Tax at 
1.1.19 was 75, at 1.1.20 the number was 63. 
 
Although the figure was reduced there was no way of determining if it was as a 
direct result of the implementation to the change of Council Tax. 
 

68.    PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
A statement regarding the Part II item “Hotel Site Westward Ho” had been prepared 
by Mr Alan Smith, but due to ill health the statement was read out by the Vice 
Chair, Councillor McGeough.  The statement included details of the purchase of the 
site from the Local Authority, the terms of the Contract, the planning history and the 
financial implications. 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

 
69.    FORWARD PLAN  

 
The Forward Plan was noted.   
 

70.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Declarations of interest were made when the specific agenda items to which they 
related were under discussion. 
 

71.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS I AND II  
 
Following an enquiry from Councillor McGeough, the Senior Solicitor clarified the 
reasons as to why Agenda item 14 had been included in Part II.   The Committee 
were advised that the information related to the financial affairs of an 
individual/business and therefore must not be discussed in a public forum. 
 
The Chair stated that due to the number of members of the public who had 
attended the meeting, Agenda item 10 “Avon Lane Westward Ho! Community 
Transfer” will be brought forward. 
 

72.    URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH 
THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE  
 
There were no urgent matters brought forward. 
 

73.    AVON LANE WESTWARD HO! COMMUNITY TRANSFER  
 
Councillor Laws declared a prejudicial interest – predetermination – did not leave 
the room and did not vote. 
 
 
The Estates Manager presented the report, the purpose of which was for Members 
to consider the transfer of the freehold interest of the park and associated property 
to Northam Town Council. 
 
During the brief discussion that followed, the hard work carried out by the late Mr 
Durkin was acknowledged by Councillor Laws and Councillor Christie. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor McGeough, seconded by Councillor Christie and - 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the disposal of the freehold interest to Northam Town Council for the Financial 
Capital Receipt of £100,000.00, exclusive of costs, be approved.  This to be subject 
to the inclusion of restrictive covenants as detailed in the report attached to the 
Agenda.   
 
The decision to be conditional on there being no further expressions of interest 
received during the period of advertising.  Should any expressions of interest be 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

received then this will need to be reported back to Community and Resources 
Committee to consider alongside that of Northam Town Council. 
 
(Vote:  For 10)    –    Councillor Laws did not vote on this item 
 

74.    NORTH DEVON AND TORRIDGE SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING 
DOCUMENT - RURAL WORKERS' DWELLINGS  
 
The Planning and Economy Manager presented the report, the purpose of which 
was for Members to consider the adoption of the North Devon and Torridge Rural 
Workers’ Dwelling Supplementary Planning Document. 
 
Councillor Hicks addressed the Committee and gave an update on the document.  
Having been involved in this matter, he was of the opinion that it was a fair 
document and one that did not favour either side. 
 
A brief discussion took place on perceived crime levels being put forward by 
applicants, as reasons for requiring a house in a rural area.  Due to the low level of 
rural crime, the approval of a house on that basis cannot be justified. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor James and - 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Rural Workers’ Dwelling Supplementary Planning Document as attached 
to the report be adopted, and that it be treated as a material consideration in 
determining relevant planning application. 
 
(Vote:  For – Unanimous) 
 

75.    MISCELLANEOUS FEES & CHARGES  
 
Councillor Wiseman declared a prejudicial interest – with an interest in a camp site 
- left the room and took no part in the debate and decision making. 
 
Councillor Dart declared a prejudicial interest – interest in building control – left the 
room and took no part in the debate and decision making. 
 
 
The purpose of the report, presented by the Strategic Manager (Resources) was for 
Members to review the level of the miscellaneous fees and charges. 
 
When presenting the report the following points were made: 
 

 The report did not cover car parking as there are no proposals to change the 
car parking fees for the current year 

 

 The Crematorium fees are set by the Joint Crematorium Committee  
 

 Harbour Board charges are set separately 

Page 6



5 
 

 
 

 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) confirmed that no questions had been 
submitted prior to the meeting. 
 
When discussing this matter, the Property and Procurement Manager addressed 
concerns raised with regard to the exclusive rights of burial – pre booking no long 
being available at Northam and Torrington due to the limited amount of spaces 
available.   A report to be presented to the Committee in due course when further 
details are available on the acquisition of land in Torrington. 
 
In respect of Northam, there are no extension spaces and the intention would be to 
utilise the Bideford Cemetery.   All other sites looked at in Northam had not been 
deemed suitable. 
 
Beach Huts – Councillor Hicks enquired as to whether the huts were on an annual 
or five year lease - the Property and Procurement Manager to  make enquiries and 
to report back. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Lock, seconded by Councillor James and - 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the charges for services to be effective from 1 April 2020 be agreed. 
 
(Vote:  For – Unanimous) – Two Members out of the room 
 

76.    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Lock, seconded by Councillor Laws and – 
 
Resolved: 
 
That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act (as amended) the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business because of the 
likely disclosure of exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 and 
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
(Vote:  For – Unanimous) 
 

77.    PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  
 

78.    HOTEL SITE WESTWARD HO!  
 
Councillor Hicks declared a prejudicial interest – left the room and took no part in 
the debate and decision making. 
 
Councillor Laws declared a prejudicial interest – did not leave the room  
 
 

Page 7



6 
 

 
 

The report was presented by the Estates Manager who explained the reasons as to 
why this matter had been brought to the Committee.   A brief overview of the report 
was given which included the history to the site, the role of the Authority and an 
update on the Scheme. 
 
A lengthy debate then followed, 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Lock, seconded by Councillor James and - 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the recommendation not to vary or remove the Restrictive Covenants on the 
site be agreed. 
 
(Vote:  For 8, Against 1, Abstentions 1)   -  One Member out of the room  
 

79.    STRATEGIC LAND ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL - DADDON MOOR 
ACQUISITION - UPDATE REPORT  
 
The Estates Manager presented the report and gave an update to Members on the 
acquisition of the site at Daddon Moor and advised on the purchase costs (Stamp 
Duty). 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor Laws and - 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the acquisition costs as detailed in the report be approved. 
 
 
(Vote:  For – Unanimous) 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 6pm and closed at 7.12pm 
 
 
 
 
Chair:  Date:  
 
 

Page 8



1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES MEETING 
 

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 
 

Monday, 3 February 2020 - 10.00 am 
 

PRESENT Councillor P Christie (in the absence of the Chair and Vice Chair 
took the Chair) 

 Councillors C Bright, D Bushby, A Dart, J Hutchings, K James, 
N Laws, R Lock, M Clarke (substituting for D McGeough), 
P Hackett (substituting for R Hicks) and C Hodson (substituting 
for R Wiseman) 

 
ALSO PRESENT J Wallace - Head of Paid Service 
 S Hearse - Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 S Dorey - Senior Solicitor 
 D Heyes - Finance Manager 
 S Cawsey - Democratic Services Officer 

 
 Councillors C Cottle-Hunkin, T Inch and P Pennington 

Mr S Dengate – Non Elected Members 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
80.   

 
Prior to the commencement of the meeting and in the absence of the Chair and 
Vice Chair – 
 
It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Lock and – 
 
Resolved: 
 
That Councillor Christie be elected as Chair for the meeting. 
 
(Vote:  For – Unanimous) 
 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor R Hicks, D McGeough, D 
Brenton and R Wiseman. 
 

81.    PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
There were no public contributions. 
 

82.    FORWARD PLAN  
 
The Forward Plan was noted.   
 

Page 9



2 
 

 
 

83.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Declarations of interest were made when the specific agenda items to which they 
related were under discussion. 
 

84.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS I AND II  
 
There were no Part II items. 
 

85.    URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH 
THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE  
 
With the permission of the Chair, Councillor Bright addressed the meeting  
regarding The Plough Art Centre in Torrington.   
 
All Members had received an email making them aware of the financial difficulties 
and the imminent danger of closure of The Plough, and seeking support at this 
difficult time.    
 
During the brief discussion that followed,  Members expressed their support for The 
Plough but raised a concern with regard to the running costs.  It was also 
acknowledged that The Plough, although located in Torrington, served a much 
wider area. 
 
A Crowd Funder Campaign had been launched. 
 

86.    BUDGET 2020/2021, MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2020 - 2021 TO 
2024 - 2025  
 
Councillor K James declared a personal interest – Holsworthy Community 
Transport and Holsworthy TIC but attended with an open mind. 
 
Councillor P Hackett declared a personal interest – Director of North Devon + (TDC 
appointed) but attended with an open mind. 
 
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) introduced the report, the purpose of which 
was to present to Members the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) indicating 
the possible extent of the budget and funding shortfall that the Council will face in 
the future.   It is an aid in identifying the extent of services changes that the Council 
will need to make to achieve a balanced budget in each financial year up to 
2024/25.  Members were also asked to consider and recommend the Budget 
2020/21 to Full Council. 
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) advised that although the Council is in a 
relatively good financial position, there is a need for savings to be found and 
decisions to be made in terms of bridging the gap in the budget.  Due to previous 
financial forethought, reserves had been generated allowing the Council time to 
bring its budgets back into balance over the course of the MTFS.  
 

Page 10



3 
 

 
 

A slide presentation was given by the Finance Manager which highlighted the 
salient points in the report.  Members were informed of the following amendment to 
the “Provisional Settlement 2020/21” slide: 
 
Bullet point 2 – Date to be amended to - Revenue Support Grant confirmed at 
2020/21 …. 
 
 Other key points highlighted included: 
 

 The impact of increasing and not increasing (as in previous years) the 
council tax  

 Business Rates 

 Budget pressures and savings 

 New Homes Bonus  

 Funding Horizon from 2021/22 

 Challenges for the Council in future years. 
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) and the Finance Manager provided reasons 
and rationale to support the recommendations as detailed in the report. 
 
During the presentation questions were asked and clarification given on a number 
of issues/concerns raised.  Amendments to the recommendations were suggested 
as follows: 
 

 New Homes Bonus – Members raised concerns with regard to the 
recommendation from Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee to cease 
earmarking this funding for Community Grants.  The Strategic Manager 
(Resources) advised there is no monies available, and that if Members 
wished to keep the New Homes Bonus, funding would be needed to be 
found from elsewhere.  It was agreed that due to the uncertainty of the 
funding from Government, this matter to be revisited when further 
information is available. 

 

 Organisations who provide a Service Level Agreement for the Council – to 
submit accounts to TDC to justify the continuing Grant. 

 

 The recommendations for existing organisations, as set out in the report 
under i) III, be deferred until further information is provided. 
 

           Councillor Pennington, Chair of External Overview & Scrutiny  
           Committee, explained that organisations receiving Grants from the  
           Council attend External Overview & Scrutiny meetings of to give an  
           update.  This matter to be reinstated onto the Forward Plan. 
 

 Item IV – the items detailed to be included in resolution III and referred back 
to Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 
 

Page 11



4 
 

 
 

The recommendations were presented and voted upon individually as follows: 
 
Recommendations to Full Council 

 
It was proposed by Councillor Lock, seconded by Councillor Hackett  - 
 
a) That the assurance of the Chief Finance Officer (s151 Officer) of the 

robustness of the budget 2020/21 as set out in section 12 of the report be 
noted. 
 

b) That the assumptions and forecast applied to develop the MTFS outlined in 
section 10 of the report be noted. 

 
c) That the forecast deficit of £0.293m in the MTFS for 2024/25 be noted. 

 
d) That the risks associated with the Budget 2020/21 and MTFS outlined in 

section 16 of the report be noted. 
 

(Vote:  For – Unanimous) 
 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bushby, seconded by Councillor James - 
 
e) That Torridge’s Band D Council Tax for 2020/21 be increased by £5 (3.06%) 

from £163.66 to £168.66 per year be approved. 
 
(Vote:  For 10, Against 1) 
 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Christie, seconded by Councillor Clarke – 
 
f) That Torridge’s Net Revenue Budget 2020/21 to be £9.737m be approved. 
 
(Vote:  For – Unanimous) 
 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Christie, seconded by Councillor Clarke – 
 
g) That a contribution of £196,531 be made from the Transition in Government 

Funding Reserve to balance the 2020/21 budgets be approved. 
 
(Vote:  For – Unanimous) 
 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Christie, seconded by Councillor Clarke – 
 
h) The contributions to the Council’s reserves as outlined in paragraph 11.4 of the 

report be approved. 
 
(Vote:  For – Unanimous) 

Page 12



5 
 

 
 

 
i) That the recommendations made at Internal Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

17 December, in relation to New Home Bonus Community Grants and funding 
external organisations as set out in Appendix A attached to the report be as 
follows: 

 
It was proposed by Councillor Christie, seconded by Councillor Dart – 
 
That there be no New Homes Bonus grants scheme to run from 2020-21. 
 
(Vote:  For 4, Against 5, Abstentions 2) 
 
The motion was lost. 
 
 

It was proposed by Councillor Hutchings, seconded by Councillor Clarke – 

 

That the New Homes Bonus be reinstated and £100,000 be found from elsewhere. 

 

(Vote:  For 2, Against 7, Abstentions 2) 

 

The motion was lost. 

 

 

It was proposed by Councillor Lock, seconded by Councillor Christie - 

 

I.           That there be no New Homes Bonus Community Grants scheme  to 
run from 2020-21 but to be revisited in 2021-22 when the Government 
funding is known and if there is additional funding to support the 
Scheme. 

 
(Vote:  For 10)  -  One Member did not vote 

 

II.           That the following organisations listed under external grants who are 
under Service Level Agreements with Torridge District Council will 
continue to receive funding at existing levels.  The organisations are 
to submit their accounts to TDC to justify the continuing grant: 

 

 North Devon Biosphere Partnership 

 North Devon Coast Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

 TTVS 

 Citizens Advice Bureau 

 North Devon Plus 

 North Devon Women’s Aid 

 

Page 13



6 
 

 
 

III.           That the recommendations for the following recipients be deferred until 
more information to be able to conduct a financial analysis is provided 
to TDC: 
  

 Holsworthy Community Transport (£6,500) 

 Affinity Bideford TIC (£1,000) 

 Holsworthy TIC (£4,500) 

 Great Torrington TIC (£4,220) 

 Bideford New Year’s Eve (£3,000) 
 

IV.           That the following items be incorporated in the above resolution (lll) 
and be referred to the Internal Overview & Scrutiny Committee as part 
of the overall process: 
 

i. Increased capacity and skill building will be facilitated during 
the wind-down period. Proposed input will be required in terms 
of governance, funding bids, policies, web presence and skills 
audits. 

 

ii. Role of the Community Engagement Officer to actively engage 
with and support community bodies across the district, as well 
as to map current provision and where gaps exist. 

 

iii. Capacity building should be provided to existing grant 
recipients and other bodies who are operating at a community 
level who have not previously received grant funding 

 
j) That the Head of Paid Service, Senior Management and the new council 

address the strategic plan & priorities and prepare options to achieve the 
savings going forward. 

 
 

The meeting commenced at 10.00am and closed at 12.05pm. 
 
 
 
 
Chair:  Date:  
 
 

Page 14



1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES MEETING 
 

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 
 

Monday, 17 February 2020 - 6.00 pm 
 

PRESENT Councillor R Hicks (Chair) 
 Councillor D McGeough (Vice-Chair) 

 
 Councillors D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, A Dart, 

J Hutchings, K James, N Laws and R Lock 
 

ALSO PRESENT J Wallace - Head of Paid Service 
 S Hearse - Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 S Dorey - Senior Solicitor 
 S Kearney - Planning & Economy Manager 
 A Redwood - Property and Procurement Manager 
 H Bond - Estates Manager 
 S Cawsey - Democratic Services Officer 
 K Brown - Democratic Services Officer 
 R Haste - Waste and Recycling Manager 
 H Roper - Service Improvement Officer 

 
 Councillors R Boughton, C Cottle-Hunkin, R Craigie, P Hames, 

C Hodson, D Hurley, D Jones, S Langford, C Leather, 
J McKenzie and S Newton 
 
5 Members of the Public 
 

89.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Wiseman (Councillor Hackett 
substituting). 
 

90.    PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
Mr Richard Wolfendon-Brown (Director & Live Event Programmer), Mr John Eeles 
(Chair) and Mr Des Maisey addressed the Committee in relation to the financial 
crisis at the Plough Arts Centre. 
 
All three speakers gave details of their personal involvement with the Plough, and 
highlighted the importance of the continuing need for this organisation, not only for 
Torrington, but also for the wider communities. 
 
The key points mentioned by the speakers included: 
 

 The history and financial history of the Plough 

Page 15



2 
 

 
 

 Reasons for the current situation and the funding difficulties faced by Art 
Organisations  

 Work being undertaken at present and in particular with outside 
organisations 
 

An appeal was made by the Speakers for support from the Authority.  
 

91.    FORWARD PLAN  
 
The Forward Plan was noted.   
 

92.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Declarations of interest were made when the specific agenda items to which they 
related were under discussion. 
 

93.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS I AND II  
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) responded to an enquiry from Councillor 
Brenton with regard to Agenda item 12 being in Part II.  He advised that if Members 
wished to discuss the financial details of the Plough Arts Centre the item must stay 
in Part II. 
 
Councillor Lock proposed that the Agenda as circulated be agreed.   There was no 
seconder for the motion. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor Bushby that 
Agenda item 10 be presented in Part II. 
 
(Vote:  For – Unanimous) 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Lock, seconded by Councillor Laws that Agenda item 
11 be presented in Part II. 
 
(Vote:  For 7, Against 5) 
 
It was proposed and seconded that Agenda item 12 be moved into Part I. 
 
(Vote:  For 10, Abstentions 2) 
 

94.    URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH 
THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE  
 
There were no urgent matters brought forward. 
 

95.    NOTICE OF MOTION - ESTABLISHMENT OF A DIRECT LABOUR FORCE  
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) presented the report, the purpose of which was 
for Members to consider Councillor Bushby’s Notice of Motion (Full Council – 28 
October 2019) that TDC establish a direct labour force. 

Page 16



3 
 

 
 

 
Following the introduction by the Strategic Manager (Resources), Councillor 
Bushby addressed the meeting and explained the reasoning for his Notice of 
Motion.   He felt that a direct labour force would be cost effective to the Council, 
and disputed the figure quoted in the report being paid to attract local labour.   
 
The pros and cons of establishing a direct labour force were discussed.  The 
issues/concerns raised included: 
 

 The benefits to both towns and parishes. 
 

 Members confirmed that the figure quoted was correct and applied to the 
Hinckley Point development.  Also local developers are prepared to pay 
higher rates to ensure developments are completed quickly, at a time when 
there is a shortage of labour. 

 

 The establishment of a direct labour force by both Bideford and Northam 
Town Councils – recruitment of employees and the work undertaken.   It was 
acknowledged that although this works well for the Town Councils, it was 
questioned whether it would be feasible for the District Council. 
 

 What other Local Authorities are doing to respond to the impacts of 
increasing costs.   The Strategic Manager (Resources) responded on what is 
happening across Devon as reported at a recent Devon Districts Forum 
attended by the Leader, Deputy Leader and Head of Paid Service, which 
doesn’t include setting up their own workforces.   Members acknowledged 
this, but wanted Officers to look further afield for evidence. 

 
It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor Christie and – 
 
Resolved: 
 
That a detailed report comparing with our CIPFA Nearest Neighbour Authorities be 
presented  to a future meeting of the Community & Resources Committee  
 
(Vote:  For 8, Against 4) 
 

96.    THE PLOUGH ART CENTRE  
 
Prior to discussion the Chair advised that the item would need to go into Part II if 
Members wished to discuss any financial details/information.  
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) gave a brief summary of the information 
received to date. 
 
A meeting had been held in February, attended by the Strategic Manager 
(Resources), the Leader, Head of Paid Service, Senior Solicitor, Councillor Cottle-
Hunkin and representatives from the Plough when the current position and the 
support required from TDC had been discussed. 
 

Page 17



4 
 

 
 

The information discussed highlighted items that had impacted on the present 
financial crisis.  From indications given at the meeting, the Strategic Manager 
(Resources) had concerns with regard to the financial management and running 
costs of the Centre. 
 
The Plough had been asked to supply the Authority with a Business Plan and 
Strategy going forward - this information had only been received from Councillor 
Cottle-Hunkin earlier that day.  Officers to consider this further information and 
report back. 
 
Following suggestions/recommendations being put forward, Members were 
informed that the item had been included on the Agenda for an update only and not 
for a decision to be made at this stage.  
 
Councillor Cottle-Hunkin addressed the meeting highlighting the reasons why 
support should be given and emphasising the importance of the Centre for 
Torrington and the wider community.   She also read to the meeting a supportive 
statement from Councillor Brown, both are Great Torrington Ward Members. 
 
During the discussion it became evident that Members were keen to support the 
Plough, and requested the matter be brought back to Committee at the earliest 
opportunity.  The next scheduled meeting is 16 March 2020.  Advice was given by 
the Strategic Manager (Resources) with regard to the item being in Part I or Part II 
of the meeting. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor Bushby that the 
Council, in principle, underwrite the present financial crisis, and look at future 
strategies.   
 
The Committee were advised that funds are available to balance their books for this 
year, with support being required from the following financial year. 
 
Following a proposal by Councillor Laws, seconded by Councillor Christie, 
Councillors Brenton and Bushby withdrew their motion. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Laws, seconded by Councillor Christie and - 
 
Resolved: 
 
That a report be brought to the next meeting of the Community & Resources 
Committee detailing options and financial consequences for consideration by 
Members. 
 
(Vote:  For – Unanimous) 
 

97.    EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 
It was proposed, seconded and – 
 
Resolved: 

Page 18



5 
 

 
 

That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act (as amended) the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business because of the 
likely disclosure of exempt information by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 and 
Paragraph 10 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
(Vote: For - Unanimous)  
 

98.    PART II (CLOSED SESSION)  
 

99.    TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION - REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDING  
 
The report, presented by the Property & Procurement Manager, sought Member 
support for the allocation of additional funding for the refurbishment of the recently 
acquired homeless accommodation.    
 
Details of the background to the current situation were given, together with the 
objectives, constraints, timescales, alternative options and risks involved should the 
recommendation not be approved. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bushby, seconded by Councillor McGeough that the 
recommendation as set out in the report not be approved, and an alternative 
proposal was put forward. 
 
(Vote:  For 2, Against 8, Abstentions 2) 
 
The motion was lost. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Christie, seconded by Councillor Lock and - 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the allocation of additional funding from the funds ring fenced for the homeless 
accommodation budget to enable the project to be delivered, on the understanding 
that the Property Team will endeavour to remain within the contract sum and where 
possible identify potential savings during the course of the works without 
compromising the completed scheme be approved. 
 
(Vote:  For 10, Against 1, Abstentions 1) 
 
 
Councillor Brenton left the meeting at 19.38pm. 
 

100.    ROYAL NORTH DEVON GOLF CLUB, WESTWARD HO!  
 
Councillor Laws declared a personal interest – Social Member of the Golf Club. 
 
 
The Estates Manager presented the report, the purpose of which was to review the 
proposed Lease arrangements with the Royal North Devon Golf Club. 
 

Page 19



6 
 

 
 

Councillor Hackett left the meeting at 19.45pm. 
 
Following the debate, it was proposed by Councillor Christie, seconded by 
Councillor James to accept the recommendation as stated in the report. 
 
An alternative proposal was put forward by Councillor Bushby.   There was no 
seconder to the proposal. 
 
A vote was taken on Councillor Christies proposal, seconded by Councillor James 
and - 
 
Resolved: 
 
That a new Lease for the additional area only as required for the replacement holes 
and tees at a peppercorn rent, to maintain and reflect the existing Lease terms be 
agreed. 
 
(Vote:  For 6, Against 3, Abstentions 1) 
 
 
 
It was proposed, seconded and – 
 
Resolved: That the press and public be readmitted 
 
(Vote: For – Unanimous) 
 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 6pm and closed at 8pm. 
 
 
 
 
Chair:  Date:  
 
 

Page 20



ACTION LIST 

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE – 20 January 2020 and SPECIAL MEETING 17 February 2020 

Minute 
No. 

Action By Who Date  
Contacted 

Completed 

60. To look into the Grants 
Scheme previously offered by 
the Council for property 
owners to repair properties. 
Wessex Resolution CIC is still 
offering Home Improvement 
Loans with the Council’s 
original funds. 
Information to be presented to 
the March meeting. 
 

J Williams 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10.2.20 Information present to meeting 16.3.20 
 
Completed 

75. Exclusive Rights of Burial – 
pre booking no longer being 
available to Northam and 
Torrington due to limited 
amount of spaces available. 
Report to be presented to C&R 
in due course. 
 
Beach Huts – Are the huts on 
an annual or five year lease? 
 

A Redwood 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A Redwood 

10.2.20  

95. NoM – Est. Direct Labour 
Force 
Detailed report comparing with 
our CIPFA Nearest Neighbour 
Authorities be presented  to a 
future meeting 
 

S Hearse 21.2.20  

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 3



96. The Plough 
 
Report to next meeting. 
 

S Hearse 21.2.20  

 

P
age 22



Information provided by Janet Williams - Environmental Health and Community 
Safety Manager 
 

 

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE – 16 March 2020 

Grants Scheme for Home Improvement Loans – Wessex Resolution CIC 

“To look into the Grants Scheme previously offered by the Council for property 
owners to repair properties. Wessex Resolution CIC is still offering Home 
Improvement Loans with the Council’s original funds. Information to be presented to 
the March meeting.” 
 
Wessex CIC have been in operation since 2003, and work with councils across 
Devon, Somerset, West Dorset, Weymouth and Portland and Wiltshire. They offer a 
number of low interest loans on behalf of TDC at 4.2% APR. The loans offered in the 
Torridge area are as follows: 
 

 Home Improvement  

 Landlord 

 Empty Property. 
 
Loans not available in Torridge: 
 

 First Time Buyer 

 Bulk buy fuel 
 
All applicants complete a face to face financial assessment before being considered 
for a loan. 
 
Attached is the Wessex Q3 review for Devon giving an outline of activity and 
drawdown for Torridge this year. 
 
More information can be found at https://www.wessexresolutions.org.uk/  
 

Page 23

https://www.wessexresolutions.org.uk/


Page 1 of 6 
 

 

Devon Review  

Quarter 3 Review 

 

December 2019 

 

 

 

  

Page 24



Page 2 of 6 
 

 

Contents 
 

Activity Update.............................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Detailed Capital and Activity Summary......................................................................................................................... 4 

APR Comparison ............................................................................................................................................................ 5 

Financials for 2019/20 .................................................................................................................................................. 5 

 

  

Page 25



Page 3 of 6 
 

Activity Update 
 

All members have been sent a copy of the detailed quarterly activity reports. 

Below are the key numbers:  

Activity Q1 

 
 

Q2 Q3 

 
2018/19 

Q1, Q2 & Q3  Increase 

Number of Referrals  34 64 62 130 23.1% 

Number of Loans Drawn down 15 34 34 47 76.6% 

Value of Loans Drawn down £133,617 £264,047 £167,202 £232,139 143.3% 

  
  

  
 

 
  

 

We are pleased to confirm that activity is up across the board compared to this time last year.  

Enquiries are split 57%/43% between direct marketing lead generation and clients approaching the council first.  

• Q2 Enquiry to Referral/Appointment conversion was steady at 66%.  

Of these (as at December 2019): 

• 8.06% have been/have Declined 

• 8.06% have Drawn down 

• 83.88% remain Ongoing  

 

 
Area Number of Referrals Number of Drawdowns Value of Loans Drawn 

down 

East Devon 12 4 £12,150 

Exeter 5 3 £29,970 

Mid Devon 3 5 £6,691 

South Hams 7 4 £36,476 

Teignbridge 20 8 £41,634 

Torridge 5 8 £29,243 

West Devon  10 5 £11,038 

Total 62 34 £167,202 

 

  

Page 26



Page 4 of 6 
 

Detailed Capital and Activity Summary 

 

 Q3 Capital Movement 

 

 
Additions  

 
Drawdowns  

  Repaid   Balance  

East Devon - £12,150 £1,281 £313,342 

Exeter - £29,970 £30,290 £577,653 

Mid Devon - £6,691 £33,883 £76,888 

South Hams - £36,476 £2,007 £68,632 

Teignbridge - £41,634 £8,923 £556,745 

Torridge - £29,243 £20,104 £188,614 

West Devon  - £11,038 £16,307 £58,504 

Total £0 £167,202 £112,797 £1,840,378 

     

     

 Q3 Activity Summary 

 Referrals Drawdowns Cancelled Ongoing 

East Devon 12 4 5 16 

Exeter 5 3 2 8 

Mid Devon 3 5 3 7 

South Hams 7 4 2 9 

Teignbridge 20 8 9 25 

Torridge 5 8 5 7 

West Devon  10 5 1 10 

Total 62 34 24 82 

     

  

Page 27



Page 5 of 6 
 

 

APR Comparison 
We have reviewed the APRs and included some credit unions who are a closer fit to us.  

A typical APR means that 51% of successful applicants would receive that interest rate. The maximum APR is the 

maximum a lender would charge for successful applicants. This can vary with the amount borrowed and the 

applicant’s credit score.  

Our target client group would potentially not be eligible for the max APR rate leaving them with the alternative 

lenders who charge higher rates. For example, Amigo loans would insist on a guarantor and charge 49.9% APR.   

Our client group would potentially not be eligible for the typical or max APR rate  

£1,000 over 18 months 

Lender 
Typical 

APR 
Max 
APR 

AA Loans 14.4% 29.90% 

HSBC 21.90% 21.90% 

Post Office 14.4% 29.90% 

Bristol Credit Union 42.60% 42.60% 

Westcountry Savings and Loans 42.60% 42.60% 

Wessex 4.20% 4.20% 

 

 

 

  

£5,000 over 60 months  

Lender 
Typical 

APR 
Max 
APR 

AA Loans 4.2% 29.90% 

HSBC 6.10% 21.90% 

Post Office 4.2% 29.90% 

Bristol Credit Union 15.90% 32.90% 

Westcountry Savings and Loans 12.7% 12.7% 

Wessex 4.20% 4.20% 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

£1,000 over 18 months

Typical APR Max APR

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

£5,000 over 60 months

Typical APR Max APR

Page 28



Page 6 of 6 
 

 

Financials for 2019/20 

 April 2019 - December 2019  

 Actual Budget Variance Note Number 

Income 
   

 
LA Subscriptions  51,211   51,212  -   
Loan Interest  38,025   37,865  160  
Subsidy Interest  2,423   3,072  -649  
Bank Interest 21,943   25,661 -3,718 1 

Total   113,603   117,810 -4,207  

     

Overheads     

Staff Costs  65,667   68,130   2,463   
Mileage Expenses  554   1,197   643   
Other Travel & Subsistence  296   528   232   
Co Vehicle Costs  2,915   1,187  -1,727  2 

Rent and Rates  2,187   2,423   235   
Heat, Light and Power  146   157   10   
Entertainment  295   406   110   
Printing, Stationery & Phones  1,575   2,215   640   
Professional Fees  5,269   5,139  -130   
Marketing  4,104   6,739   2,635   
IT Costs  13,135   13,489   354   
Premises Expenses  923   393  -530  3 

Gen Expenses inc Training  1,196   1,670   473   
Insurance  1,537   1,649   112   
Misc  72   42  -30   
Bank Charges and Interest  137   401   264   
Depreciation  2,463   3,827   1,363   
Irrecoverable VAT  3,434   3,434   0   
Total 105,906 113,024 7,119  

     

Net Surplus (Loss): 7,697 4,786 2,912  
 

Commentary on Results Above 

We are pleased to see a strong overall performance against budget in Q3.  

 
1. Bank Interest- We have earned less interest due to the positive increase in the value of drawdowns for Q1, 

Q2 & Q3 

2. Co Vehicle Costs- We overstated the cost savings in this area and will rectify this in the next year’s budget. 

3. Premises Expenses- We needed to repaint the office, which was not budgeted for as we were unaware it was 

in our contract to do so every so many years. 

 

Devon Deferred Income Reserve 

The balance of the deferred income reserve remains £24,283. 

Page 29



COMMUNITY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN – 2019/20 
 

Leadership 
 

21 May 2019 
2pm  

25 June 2019 
2pm 

30 July 2019 
2pm  

24 Sept 2019 
2pm  

12 Nov. 2019 
2pm  

7 January 2020 
2pm  

18 February 2020 
2pm  

7 April 2020 
2pm  

         

Community 
& Resources 
(Mondays) 

10 June 2019 
10am  

 

15 July 2019 
6pm 

TUESDAY 
27 August 2019 

10am 
 

14 October 2019 
6pm  

 

25 November 2019 
10am 

20 January 2020 
6pm  

 

16 March 2020 
6pm 

 

TUESDAY 
27 April 2020 

10am 

Finance  Draft Outturn Report 
(DH) 

      

Performance 
 

   QBR Q1 
 

QBR Q2 
(Any recommendations 
from Internal Scrutiny) 

  QBR Q3 
(Any recommendations 
from Internal Scrutiny) 

 
Other 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Petition 

Stirlings/Fireworks 
(SK) 

 
Policies - Muslim 

Burials (SH) 
 
 
 
 

 
Any 

Recommendations 
from Internal Scrutiny 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Changes to the 

Constitution – update 
from Working Group  

 
Any Recommendation 
from Internal Scrutiny: 

 “Call In” – 
Fireworks/starlings” 

 
Town Hall Work Hub 

 
Acquisition of 

Homelessness Property 
(AR) (Pt II) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Verbal update from 
the Constitution WG 

 
Temporary Acc 

Planning App (AR) 
 

Planning Application 
for CCTV Skate Park 

(AR) 
 

PART I & II 
 

Visitors Centre at 
Westward Ho! 
Burrows (AW) 

 
PART II 

 
Security for Cattle 
market site (AR) 

 
Strategic Property 
Acquisitions and 
disposals (AR) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Taxi Rank Working 
Group Proposal (J 

Williams) 
 

Update on Notices of 
Motion from FC 

(HOPS) 
 

PART II 
Legal Briefing 

 
Rural workers dwellings 

SPD (DB) 
 

Fees and Charges for 
2020-21 

 
Avon Lane/Westward 

Ho! Park (H Bond) 
 
 
 

Part II 
Proposed alteration to 
Covenant - Hotel Site 

Westward Ho! (HBond) 
 

Property Acquisition 
Update (HB) 

 

Leisure Contract - 
options appraisal (JJ) 

 
Grants Scheme for 
Home Improvement 

Loans (SH & J Williams) 
 

Police powers re Gypsy 
& Travellers (ST) 
(Leadership only) 

 
Policy for Business 
Rates Relief (SH) 

 
Refugee Resettlement 

(ST) 
 

Burrow Centre (AR) 
 

The Plough (SK) 

 
PART II 

Hardship Panel (SH) 
 

3 Feb 2020 – 10am 
Budget Special 

 
Budget 2020/21, Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 
2020-21 to 2024-25 (SH) 

 
  17 Feb 2020 – 6pm 

Special Meeting 
Notice of Motion – Est. of 

a Direct Labour Force 
(SH) 

PART II 
Royal North Devon Golf 

Club Lease 
(HB) 

Hostel – outcome of 
Procurement Exercise 

(HB) 
The Plough Torrington 

(SH) 
 

 

Capital Programme 
2020-21 to 2026-27 

(SH) 
 

Moorings Policy (SD) 
 

Write Off Report (SH) 
 

PART II 
Bridge Buildings (AR) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 5



 
  

REPORT OF Planning and Economy Manager 

To: Community and Resources Committee 

Subject: The Plough Arts Centre 

Date: 16th March 2020 Reference:  

 
 
 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:     
To seek approval for £25,000 of  financial assistance for the Plough Arts Centre in financial year 
20/21 

 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
 Following recent press coverage, social media campaigns and statements made at 

Community and Resources Committee (C&R) during public speaking, members will be 
aware that the Plough Arts Centre in Great Torrington has financial problems and is fund 
raising to safeguard the future of the organisation. 

 
At a meeting of C&R on the 17th February members were keen to stress the value of the 
Plough to the local economy and cultural landscape of the District.  It was resolved that;  
 
A report be brought to the next meeting of Community and Resources Committee detailing 
options and financial consequences for consideration by Members. 

  
 
 
2. REPORT 

 
Current forecasts provided by the management of The Plough indicate a £50,000 per annum 
shortfall in the core operating costs with effect from the 2020-21 Budget. 
To fill that financial gap and to seek time to make organisation change, increase income or 
reduce cost the following organisations have been approached for financial assistance: 
 
• Torridge District Council (TDC): £25,000 
• Devon County Council (DCC): £10,000  
• Great Torrington Town & Lands Charity (GTTLC): £10,000  
• North Devon District Council (NDDC): £5,000  
 
In addition, the Plough will be applying for project grant funding from the Arts Council but 
that will be for a range of arts projects and creative collaborations rather than a contribution 
to core costs.  
 
In the next two years they may decide to apply to the Arts Council to become a National 
Portfolio Organisation which will, in principle, support core costs.  However. the level of 
which that may be provided is not clear at present and unlikely to become so until that 
application is submitted and considered by the Arts Council. 
 
Great Torrington Town Council (GTTC) already invest £9,000 per year and have supported 
the Plough annually since 1975. The Plough Trustees are not currently requesting any 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



 
  

increase on that amount but if additional funding became available this would reduce the 
amount requested from other organisations.  

 
The management of the Plough stress that they need £50,000 in additional core funding in 
order to survive. If this figure is not forthcoming The Plough Trustees will have difficult 
decisions to make regarding the future operation of the Plough after 1st April 2020.  
 
The Crowd funder campaign recently organised, plus direct donations at the box office, has 
now exceeded £30,000 (as at 26/02/20). The organisation is still forecasting a deficit for 
2019/20 but forecast to be able cover the such shortfall from reserves and the donations 
received..  
 
The urgency now is to confirm offers of core funding and to get to a position where the trust 
can set a balanced and sustainable budget from 1st April 2020. 
 
The following statement of activity and assurance has been provided by the Plough Trustees 
to the Council: 
 
The management practices of the Plough have been prudent, robust and diligent since being 
re-established as an independent arts centre, business and charity in 2002. So much so that 
many other arts centres from across the South West and further afield have visited to learn 
from our experiences of surviving with very little public funding. The Plough’s democratically 
elected Council of Management (who are directors of the company and trustees of the 
charity), have overseen a gradual change in the business model from relying on 68% public 
funding in 2001 to just 3% in 2019.  
 
Whilst audiences and turnover grew, a rapid rise in core costs, coupled with changes to a 
key grant and some exceptional buildings issues created a perfect storm recently in the 
Plough’s finances. Trustee knowledge of the seriousness of the situation was delayed until 
the beginning of 2020 due to an unfortunate set of circumstances regarding our 
accountancy, which has led to the Plough registering an official complaint with the relevant 
professional body. As soon as the adverse financial situation was confirmed, trustees took 
immediate remedial action. This included: 
 
• Establishing a subgroup to look in details at all the issues 
• Liaising with all staff and putting in place an emergency plan to cut wages and 

opening hours from 1st March 2020.   
• Informing current funders of the situation 
• Asking the newly appointed Treasurer (who is a qualified accountant) to review all 

costs and financial control processes to ensure systems are put in place to prevent 
this situation reoccurring. 

• Launching a fundraising campaign by contacting all Plough customers, supporters, 
donors, volunteers, artists, agents, media and elected representatives to garner 
financial support to try to cover the projected deficit of £50,000 before the end of 
2019/20. 

 
The Plough management team have prepared and submitted to TDC financial plans for the 
next three years.  However, due to short time between the Community and Resources 
meetings and other constraints it has not been possible for officers (The Plough and TDC)  
to meet and undertake the necessary due diligence to assure Members that injecting TDC 
taxpayers money will sustain the Plough in the future.   
 
For this reason this report deals with addressing the immediate financial position for 2020-21 
and that the review can then take place in a more timely manner and a further report be 
brought back to C&R upon conclusion of that exercise. 
 

Page 32



 
  

 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
The position on State Aid has been reviewed.  There are essentially four characteristics to 
state aid  being that aid is granted through state resources, the aid favours certain entities, it 
distorts competition or it affects trade between member states.  For the circumstances as 
outlined in this report no state aid exists.  The matter would need to be reviewed further if 
any elements other than those outlined in this report were to change. 
 
Financial Implications 
A single contribution of £25,000 to be funded from the Economic Development Project 
Reserve is recommended. 
 
Human Resources Implications 
None 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
None 
 
Equality/Diversity 
None 
 
Risk Management 
None 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
The recommendation is in accordance with the Councils emerging strategic priority of The 
Economy and more specifically the strategic action of Developing Thriving Town Centres 
and Rural offer; recognised as a great place to invest in, live and visit. 

 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
None 
 
 
Lead Member Views 
Date of Consultation – 04/03/20 
 
I’m pleased that we are able recommend some financial assistance to safeguard the future 
of the Plough in the short term and to investigate ways of making the organisation more 
financially sustainable in the coming years.  The Plough is a very important asset and plays 
a huge role in the economic vitality and viability of Great Torrington. For the District Council 
to recognise that, despite having financial challenges of it’s own, should be considered an 
enormous show of support for the organisation, the town and the Cultural sector of the  
district economy.    
 
Councillor Bob Hicks, Lead Member for Economy. 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
  

It is beyond doubt that the Plough is a much valued cultural asset that adds to the richness 
of community in Great Torrington and across wider Northern Devon.  

 
 It is unfortunate that a combination of factors have aligned to leave the Plough with a budget 

shortfall that threatens the future of the establishment.  The reasons for their financial 
problems have to some extent been explored in meetings between the Council and the 

Page 33



 
  

Trustees and management of the Plough but it would be prudent for the Council to look at 
arrangements more forensically before committing to more than one year of financial 
support.  Given the very short timescale since the previous C&R resolution and the pressing 
need of the Plough it has not been possible to undertake the detailed financial review and 
options analysis that we would expect to present to Members before recommending 
significant financial intervention. Instead, recognising the need of the organisation and the 
indicated intention of Councillors to show support the recommendations have be formulated. 

 
In the coming months officers will consider the financial and operational management 
arrangements of the Plough in order that any recommendation can be made in the 
knowledge that the future of the Plough is sustainable and that the organisation will not 
become dependent on the Council for core funding in the longer term. 
 
At the time of writing this report the intentions of the other organisations from which funding 
has been requested are not known. 
 
At a meeting with the Plough Trustees and management the recommendations below were 
agreed as the best initial course of action for members to consider.  The support as set out 
in the recommendations would provide the Plough with enough immediate financial security 
to maintain current operations.  They also provide the Council with time to undertake the 
necessary due diligence that will be required if a recommendation for further financial 
assistance is to be made. 

 
 
 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that: 
 

a) Subject to the other funding requests identified in the report above being successful, 
members approve a single financial contribution to support the Plough in financial Year 
20/21 of £25,000 to be funded from the Economic Development Project Reserve  
 

b) The officers are tasked with working with the management of the Plough over the coming 
months to ascertain the requirement for and affordability of additional financial assistance in 
future years.  Any recommendation for additional assistance would be the subject of a 
separate report to Community and Resources Committee or Full Council (depending on 
which is the most appropriate) later in the financial year 20/21. 
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Consultations: Date of Consultation – 04/03/20 

Officers Consulted – Strategic Manager (Resources), Senior 
Solicitor and Monitoring Officer, Accountant. 

 Contact Officer: Sean Kearney 

 Background Papers:  

 
 
 
 

 

Page 34



 
  

 
 

REPORT of  Strategic Manager (Resources) 

To: Community and Resources Committee 

Subject: Beach Access – Request for Funding. 

Date: 16th March 2020 Reference: PART I 

 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:     
 
To obtain Members support for the allocation of funding for the extension to the 
existing slipway structure at Westward Ho! to achieve safe access onto the beach. 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
Members will be aware of the previous discussions regarding the responsibilities for 
maintenance of the slipway at Westward Ho! recent Storms have caused further loss 
of beach material locally to the extent that it is now in a condition that is making 
access onto the beach difficult for beach users, the RNLI and emergency services. 
 
This report sets out the background to the current situation and requirement for 
funding to be approved in order to remedy the current situation ahead of the summer 
season. 
 
2. REPORT 
 
The slipway at Westward Ho! is in part owned by the adjacent land owner and in part 
by TDC with TDC having responsibility for the maintenance of the slipway under a 
maintenance agreement with the adjacent land owner. 
 
The issue of access onto the beach has been a concern for a few years now and the 
subject of much media and political interest with Geoffrey Cox MP visiting the site 
last year in order to promote a way forward between the various parties involved. 
The agreement at that time was that this would be at no cost to TDC other than 
officer time in assisting with the design review and various consents required. 
 
The adjacent land owner subsequently committed to fund the provision of a 
temporary structure to extend the slipway to the western side, fronting the incoming 
wave action. Various designs were proposed and meetings have been held on site to 
discuss the solutions proposed. In our opinion none of the temporary structures 
proposed would be of sufficient durability to withstand the tides and swell 
experienced at this part of the beach. 
 
In the meantime, we have encountered named storms and spring tides in the early 
part of this year that have caused further loss of beach material and significant 
damage to the private sea defences to the east of the slipway. The condition of the 
access is now in a particularly difficult condition where access to the beach is 
virtually impossible as a result of the beach material being stripped away to expose 
the clay strata below. Vehicular access is currently not achievable and although there 

Page 35

Agenda Item 10



 
  

is the prospect of some recovery of material as the tides and storms ease, the overall 
effect is a progressive reduction in the ground level at the base of the slipway. 
 
This is not a new problem - the slipway has been extended on at least two occasions 
in the past. The current condition is however exacerbated by the loss of material 
locally which has increased the rate of scour and erosion generally. This is having a 
greater effect on the overall condition of the entire sea defences in this particular 
location, not just the slipway. 
 
It is important to bear in mind that there are plans in place for a new linear defence 
for Westward Ho! intended to be constructed across the front of the slipway and 
private land to protect the premises to the rear. This work is the subject of a live 
Business Case that we have been working on with the Environment Agency that is 
currently planned for the early part of this decade. It is highly likely that the new linear 
defences will also include a remodelled slipway that is more appropriately designed 
and orientated to resist the pressure of the incoming wave action locally. 
 
Taking this into consideration, any works to extend he slipway might be considered 
as temporary. Unfortunately, the temporary nature of such works probably means 
that they are unlikely to be robust enough to withstand the coastal action taking place 
and would probably be lost within a season. Any temporary extension to achieve 
access onto the beach will therefore need to be robust enough to withstand the 
forces and wave action, if only for a few years. 
 
Mindful of the fast approaching season and need for us to facilitate access for the 
RNLI and emergency services we have been in regular discussions with the 
adjoining land owner and contractors over the past couple of weeks regarding a 
potential solution to the current problem.  
 
It has been questioned hat would be the impacts should TDC press on with the 
works regardless, but apart from the financial implications there are also a series of 
consents required that as an Authority we legally must obtain. Copied below is the 
advice from our Engineer on the current approvals required and potential penalties 
for non-compliance. 
 
In order to progress the concrete extension to the slipway the following processes 
must be followed: 
 
Natural England: Consent to undertake works within a SSSI. 28day max response 

SSSI Westward Ho! Cliffs Unit 3 Northam Burrows Beach 
           MCZ Bideford to Foreland Point 

AONB North Devon 
 

Penalty - Stop and Restoration Notice or up to Criminal Sanction (Injunction) if 
found to commit a breach 
 
Marine Management Organisation: Marine License. 13weeks max to determine 
            Construction works beneath Mean High Water Springs 
            Must include a Water Framework Directive (WFD) Assessment 

 
Penalty - Required by Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009: £50k if found to have 
committed a breach 
 

Page 36



 
  

Consultation with the Environment Agency 
Works must not increase the flood risk in the area or negatively impact adjacent flood 
protection structures (linked to WFD Assessment above). 
 
TDC Planning Permission. 
 
Current Planning advice is this will probably not be classed as “Permitted 
Development”, however further discussions are underway. 
 
If Planning Permission is required this would be progressed as per standard PP 
timescales. 

 
TDC have engaged with local contractors in order to progress outline designs and 
quotations for the works and will continue to work with our colleagues in the Planning 
Team to adhere to Planning Policy. 
 
 
Costs involved 
 
In considering the works required the following costs have been identified so far. 
 
Marine Management Organisation  
Likely to charge up to £1,400 as the works are within an MCZ and MCZ Impact 
Assessments will therefore be required. 
 
LPA Planning Permission 
If planning permission is required then cost is £234. 
 
Design of works 
To make the design as simple and robust as possible whilst mitigating potential 
impact to coastal processes and SSSI / MCZ features. We must be mindful of the 
potential to impact sediment transport from south to north onto the Pebbleridge, 
incidental impacts to adjacent coastal defences and any increase to flood risk. 
 

 The concrete extension is to follow the same line and a similar gradient to the 
previous extension  

 Measure 5m in length from the current end of the slipway with a walkable 
surface 3m in width  

 The sides of the extension are to be sloped to reduce water turbulence around 
the structure 

 Extension to be strengthened by using the Sandymere Sleepers. These shall 
be placed in an overlapping mesh-like design. This will reduce initial material 
cost of the project and will re-use a waste product. 

 Outline cost are being reviewed as further quotations are being sought. 
 
 
The objectives: 
 
The objective remains to achieve access to the beach ahead of the summer season. 
 
 
 

Page 37



 
  

Constraints: 
 
The pressure on funding for the construction costs involved and the impact any delay 
will have on the overall ability to access and manage the beach.  
 
 
Risks: 
 
Continued pressure on budgets balanced against reputational damage for the 
Council if the works are not completed or are further delayed. 
 
Issues were raised at the Project Group on 3rd March relating to the flood risk for the 
site generally. The Property Team are currently trying to arrange a multi-agency 
meeting to discuss this and other issues ahead of the Full Council meeting 
scheduled for 6th April. 
 
Timescales: 
 
The project has already been delayed for valid reasons, but further delays are going 
to have an impact on the overall ability to access the beach this season. If Members 
approve the provision of funds for these works arrangements would be put in hand to 
progress with immediate effect. 
 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
None anticipated apart from our existing obligations to comply with current 
Legislation. 
 
Financial Implications 
Additional funding required for the completion of the project that was not within 
the original budget or approved from Members.  
 
Human Resources Implications 
The work would be completed by the existing team although we are under 
increased pressure as we approach the summer period and other seasonal 
works come on stream. 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
All as covered by the various consents required. 
 
Equality/Diversity 
All as necessary to achieve access onto the beach by all users. 
 
Risk Management 
All as previously reported. 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
All as the Draft Strategic Plan. 
 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
N/A 
 

Page 38



 
  

 
 
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 

The need to afford access onto the beach is now a pressing requirement 
ahead of the summer season. Works are required to extend the existing 
slipway to achieve access for users, the RNLI and emergency services. 
 
Compliance with the statutory consents are required to limit reputational 
damage and penalties for failure to act in accordance with the legislative 
processes involved. 
 
Negotiations with the adjoining landowner are  continuing as there was 
indication that a contribution towards the cost of the works involved would b 
forthcoming due to the beneficial nature of the works to their landholdings and 
business interests. The current costs are investigated and it is recommended 
can be funded from resources set aside from Coastal Community Funds held 
in reserve in addition to external funding being sought.  
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

To Full Council to include the project in the Capital Programme, which will be 
funded from a combination of Coastal Communities Grant and an external 
contribution to enable the work to be completed within the timescale and 
consents required.   
 
That a planning application is submitted and consent obtained for the works. 
 
 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
Ward Member and Lead Member Views 
 
Councillor Hodson – This project has my total support, to resolve a community 
and emergency services access problem, that has been in the Council agenda 
for many months 
 
Ward Members – supportive as discussed at the Property Group. 
Ward Members – supportive as discussed at the Property Group. 
 

 
 Officers Consulted 

Senior Management Team  
Northam Burrows Ranger 
 

 

 Contact Officer - Adrian Redwood, Property and Procurement Manager. 
 

 

Page 39



 
  

REPORT OF Planning and Economy Manager 

To: Community and Resources Committee 

Subject: Leisure contract Options 

Date: 16 March 2020 Reference:  

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The current leisure contract expires in January of 2022 and at would be timely for the 
Council to commence the process of determining what leisure services and facilities it 
wishes to provide from Feb 2022 and how those, if any/should be managed. 
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
 The Council has two years to decide what role it wants to have in providing leisure services 

for the community and how those services might be delivered and managed. 
  
 
2. REPORT 
 

Torridge District Council currently has four leisure sites across the District which are 
managed by its leisure contractors 1610; who have operated the contract since 2012.   
 
Two of these sites operate under a dual-use arrangement with Torrington school and 
Holsworthy College respectively and there have been discussions with reference to a 
possible transfer of the facilities to the school(s) for operating.  
 
Moving forward there are at least 6 options that should be explored taking into account the 
current stock, the demographic of the area, what the Authority wants to deliver in respect of 
sport and leisure and any associated operating cost savings.  
  
1. In-house management; The Local Authority would staff and operate the various sites 

and services. 
2. Outsourced management; As it is now with similar management arrangements; 
3. Establishing a new organisation to manage the Council’s leisure activity: 
 Non Profit Distributing Organisation (NPDO), Co-operative and Charitable 

Incorporated Organisation (CIO); 
 Community Interest Company (CIC); 
 Local Authority Controlled Company (LACC); 
 Joint Venture (JV) Company. 
4. Asset transfer: Determine whether TDC should transfer any of its assets, partially or 

in their entirety  
 Community Asset Transfer; 
 Long-term leases with restrictions; 
 Long-term leases without restrictions / asset disposal. 
5.  Extension of the existing contract with 1610. 
6. Cease to deliver certain or all aspects of the council’s leisure contract. 
 
The Council would benefit from working with external professional expertise to explore all of 
these opportunities fully and therefore provide a range of opportunities for the Authority to 
choose from. 

  

Page 40

Agenda Item 11



 
  

Officers therefore seek the necessary funding to tender for leisure consultants to undertake 
an options appraisal of the Torridge leisure provision and to provide recommendations of 
what to work towards thereafter in terms of a leisure provision arrangement. 
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal Implications 
 
Leisure Services are a discretionary area of activity for the Council and it is under no legal 
obligation to provide of manage leisure facilities. 
 
Financial Implications 

  
During the last procurement exercise undertaken in  2011 the costs of external advice were 
£57k and therefore is expected to be higher this time  The true cost will not be fully known 
without exploring via a tender exercise.  However the costs will also be dependant on the 
extent of the exercise undertaken as highlighted in the report above (points 1 to 6) 

 
Human Resources Implications 

             
            At this stage none. 
    

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
 

Equality/Diversity 
 

Risk Management 
 
It is essential that work is commenced as soon as possible in order that all options around 
leisure management can be fully investigated and cost risks can be appropriately managed. 

 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 

 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
 
Climate Change 

 
 
Ward Member and Lead Member Views 
Date of Consultation – 06/03/20 Cllr Cottle-Hunkin 
 
The leisure services that we provide via the Leisure contract are really important for the 
general health and well being to our communities.  It is essential that the contract we have in 
place with our managing agents is fit for purpose and deliver the community benefits that we 
seek. 
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 

The Council does not have the in-house staff resource to be able to conduct a detailed 
options appraisal.  In addition the Council would benefit from external expertise to challenge 
conventional thinking on what the council’s role in Leisure provision is to be and look at 
innovative ways of how that can be delivered. 

 
 

 

Page 41



 
  

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that: 
 

1. Councillors approve a budget to meet the costs of commissioning external expertise to 
provide a fully costed options analysis and recommendations. 

2. That progress reports are made on this work to the Property and Major Project Working 
Group 
 

3. That the final consultants report and recommendations is brought back to Community and 
Resources Committee for consideration and resolution with 12 months.  
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Consultations: Date of Consultation – 

Officers Consulted - 
 Contact Officer: Sean Kearney 

 

 Background Papers:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 
  

 
 

REPORT of  Strategic Manager (Resources) 

To: Community and Resources Committee 

Subject: The Burrows Centre – Request for Additional Funding. 

Date: 16th March 2020 Reference: PART 1 

 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:     
 
To obtain Members support for the allocation of the additional funding required for 
the delivery of the Northam Burrows Visitor Centre, exhibition space and café facility. 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
Members will be aware of the previous committee reports and successful grant 
funding secured from the Coastal Communities Fund for the provision of the 
replacement Visitor Centre at Northam Burrows. Over the past twelve months the 
project has been developed through the detailed design and tender process to 
establish the actual build cost for the scheme. This is now above the original budget 
estimate submitted as part of the original grant application. 
 
This report sets out the background to the current situation and requirement for 
further funding to be approved in order to deliver this project. 
 
2. REPORT 

 
Following the successful completion of the external grant funding for the project 
detailed designs and specifications were prepared for the demolition and 
replacement of the existing Visitor Centre on The Northam Burrows. The initial 
concept design was worked up to the point where detailed costings could be 
prepared by the Quantity Surveyor appointed for the scheme. The costs developed 
at that time were significantly over budget by circa £300k. Value engineering 
workshops were held with the entire design team to bring the proposals back into line 
with the original budget, further design development needed to comply with current 
standards and the provision on renewable energy elements that were not included in 
the original scheme placed additional pressure on the budget. 
 
The final design was completed at the end of 2019 and a full tender pack issued to 
six regional contractors from one of the frameworks that we are able to utilise. The 
scheme was tendered on a traditional form of contract rather than a Design & Build 
form of procurement. The decision was taken to adopt this approach by the project 
team to accommodate the extent of design necessary at the tender stage to achieve 
greater cost certainty and best value. On completion of the detailed design a revised 
Pre-tender Estimate was completed in the sum of £1.8m exc. VAT. This excluded 
any fit out works to the ground floor exhibition space and first floor café concession 
area that is intended to be let as a separate commercial entity. The tender package 
also excluded the demolition works which had already been procured independently. 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 12



 
  

Tenders were received at the end of February and the results as opened are 
summarised below. The second tender opened (underlined below) represented the 
lowest acceptable tender. 
 
 £1,917,094. £1,866,730. £1,942,645. £2,401,135. £2,043,263. 

 
Please bear in mind that these tenders were for the main build element only. The 
closeness of the lowest three tenders received whilst over the pre-tender estimate is 
still encouraging. The lowest three tenders were within a 4% range and the 
closeness would support the original intention to adopt a traditional procurement 
route for the delivery in order to achieve best value. 
 
Members previously approved a budget for the project of £2.14m (Full Council 
February 2019) with an overall project budget of £2.155m currently allocated when 
residual funds are carried over from previous PID’s. The background to the report 
provided at that time was based on the estimates incorporated within the Business 
Case submitted for the CCF Funding. 
 
A further report was presented to C&R Committee in October 2019 which further set 
out the background to the project. The project was noted with support to continue 
with the project, further supported by the inclusion of the project in the Draft Strategic 
Plan currently under consideration. 
 
The total spending committed to date as at March 2020 for the various surveys and 
design fees amounts to £223k with further funds of £140k required for the Exhibition 
Space, fit out and £35k for the demolition works. Temporary Storage costs and 
Visitor WC’s will involve further costs of circa £30k.  
When taking all of these costs and other ancillary costs etc. into account, the project 
has a predicted overspend of circa £315k as demonstrated in the table below. 
 

Item Description Funding 
(£k) 

Costs 
(£k) 

 Secured Funding   

1 Original CCF Grant  1,200  

2 TDC Contribution as currently committed 955  

3 Total Budget Approved Feb 2019 2,155  

 Costs    

4 Fees and Charges already committed at March 2020  223 

5 Demolition Costs  35 

6 Main Build Construction Cost  1,866 

7 Exhibition Fit-out Design & Installation  140 

8 Western Power / Telecom and Data infrastructure etc.  44 

9 Post Contract Fees not yet committed  16 

10 Building Regulation Fees  15 

11 Fixtures & Fittings / Fit-out works  30 

12 Temporary Beach Welfare Facilities  31 

12 IT Data and Telephony  16 

13 Contingency sum  of £0.1m   100 

14 Total cost of the works, fees and fit out March 2020  2,516 

    

 Secured Funds (3) 2,155  

 Project Costs (14) 2,516  

 Current Shortfall / Overspend (361)  

    

 Potential Additional Funding Contributions    

 Current Grant Application – (RDPE Growth Fund) 110  

 Future Grant Applications for Carbon Offset (BA etc.) 20  

 Sub Total 130  

 

Page 44



 
  

It should be noted that the shortfall of £361k will reduce should we successful in our 
bids for external grants of £130k shown above and if the £100k contingency is not 
required. 
 
We have not included any revenue costs associated with the completed scheme as 
part of the above on the basis that any rental income from the commercial café 
space will be heavily discounted in the early years to offset the cost of the 
commercial kitchen installation. Any rental income from the community space and 
tenanted office accommodation will be used to offset some of the running costs of 
the centre going forward. 
 
On completion of the detailed design work, tenders were sought for the works 
required from the contractors. The lowest tender was approximately £66k above the 
pre-tender estimate that was prepared at the same time as the tenders were being 
obtained. Whilst this increase is a variance of only 3.5% on the pre-tender estimate it 
does further substantiate the pressures that we continue to experience in obtaining 
prices for work. We have previously reported on the effect the current volume of work 
is having on the construction market locally and with recent news of the new North 
Devon Leisure Centre Contract being let at circa £14m this is likely to add further 
pressure on the labour shortages at the time when this project will be on site. 
 
Furthermore, as this project is being let under a traditional form of contract the 
contractor bears limited risk. It is worth reminding Members that T.D.C. as client 
under the contract will be liable for any unforeseen works, variations to the scope or 
delays to the project that are not of the contractors making. 
 
Taking all of the above into consideration, we would recommend that a further 
percentage addition is allocated to the project as a contingency sum to cover any 
additional unforeseen eventualities. An amount of £100k has been included in the 
table of costs above to allocate should unforeseen costs accrue.  This will be 
monitored by the Property and Major Projects Working Group as part of the overall 
governance framework for the delivery of the project in parallel with the above, 
consideration should also be given for the potential requirement to fit out the 
commercial kitchen in the event that we are unable to successfully secure a 
commercial operator for this space. Current indications are that this will be an 
attractive proposition with sufficient interest to let the space, but it would be 
inappropriate not to make Members aware of the potential risks associated with this 
element of the project. The current projections are that a fully functioning commercial 
Kitchen installation for the cafe café would cost in the region of £120k exc. VAT. 
These costs are NOT included in any of the above figures, but represent a risk item 
in the event that a suitable Tenant cannot be secured. 
 
 
The objectives: 
 
The original objective remains as set out in the previous Full Council report and C&R 
report of October 2019, which is attached as Appendix one. 
 
Constraints: 
 
The pressure on funding for the additional construction costs involved and the impact 
delay will have on the overall programme for the works to achieve a weather-proof 
structure by the autumn of 2020.  

Page 45



 
  

 
 
 
Risks: 
 
Continued pressure on budgets and the potential to claim the full grant fund of £1.2m 
required by 31st March 2021. 
 
Reputational damage may be a risk for the Council in committing to deliver a project 
of significant social importance that has been delayed. 
 
Further cost pressures may be encountered if the works are further delayed and 
outside of the original acceptance period. 
 
Time and resourcing costs would be incurred if the scheme is required to be re-
tendered with no certainty of any improvement in the values returned. 
 
A potential lack of interest in the investment required for the fit-out of the Commercial 
Kitchen by local operators. 
 
Issues raised at the Project Group on 3rd March relating to the flood risk for the site 
were dealt with in the October 2019 report. The Property Team are currently trying to 
arrange a multi-agency meeting to discuss this and other issues ahead of the Full 
Council meeting scheduled for 6th April. 
 
The costs of £223k expended to date cannot be funded from the CCF grant should 
the project not progress as a result of increased cost pressure.  In addition to these 
there would be costs associated with the existing Burrows Centre over the coming 
years to ensure that the building is fit for purpose.  These works had not progressed 
or been quantified due to the impending project to replace the current facility. 
 
Timescales: 
 
The project has already been delayed for valid reasons, but further delays are going 
to have an impact on the overall ability to ensure a weatherproof structure is 
achievable before the autumn. The current committee cycles are such that if the 
decision of this C&R Committee is referred to Full Council on 6th April 
commencement on site must be achieved as soon as possible after this committee 
date. The original intention to demolish the existing structure during the tender period 
for the main works did not go ahead due to the pressure on tender prices associated 
with other recent projects. 

Page 46



 
  

If a decision is achieved to allocate the additional funding for the project on 6th April 
the following programme would be pursued. 
 

 Appoint demolition Contractor    7th April 

 Start on site (3 week lead-in)  27th April 

 Demolition period (3 weeks)  

 Award Contract for Main Works 20th April 

 Main works Start on site  18th May 20 

 Contract Period (48 weeks)   

 Completion    19th April 21 

 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
None anticipated apart from our existing obligations to comply with current 
Legislation. 
 
Financial Implications 
Additional funding required for the completion of the project that was not within 
the original budget or approved from Members.  
 
Potential loss of CCF funding of £1.2m if the project is not sufficiently 
completed to satisfy the funding criteria within the period to 31st March 2021. 
 
Costs already incurred of cannot be met from the CCF grant if the project 
does not progress plus any costs associated with works to existing facility. 
 
The £361k reported additional costs may be offset through securing additional 
external grants bid for and should some or, all of the £100k contingency not 
be required. 
 
Human Resources Implications 
The work would be completed by the existing team although we are under 
increased pressure as we approach the summer period and other seasonal 
works come on stream. 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
All as previously reported. 
 
Equality/Diversity 
All as previously reported. 
 
Risk Management 
All as previously reported. 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
All as the Draft Strategic Plan. 
 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
N/A 
 
 

Page 47



 
  

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 

The tenders obtained for both the demolition works and main build were both 
above the pre-tender estimate for both phases of work. The updated costs 
associated with this project are symptomatic of the current tendering 
environment where there is more work than there is labour to resource it.  
 
The main build costs are now tendered; certain other costs remain budget 
only at this stage, the majority of the costs are however now confirmed. 
 
Members are committed to the delivery of the project, but to achieve this, 
Members will need to consider and approve the allocation of additional 
funding to meet the shortfall between the original budget as approved and the 
current projected cost of the work involved. 
 
The original Full Council Report identified a total project cost of £2,155,000 for 
the project. Having completed the competitive tendering of the project and 
with a better understanding of the other costs involved the total cost of the 
work now stands at £2,516,000exc. VAT. Within this assessment is an 
allowance of £100,000 to be set aside as a contingency sum for unforeseen or 
inflation related works.  
 
The current shortfall in the overall budget for the demolition and rebuilding of 
the Northam Burrows Visitor Centre therefore stands at £361,000 exc. VAT. 
 
The Property Team will continue to manage the works as effectively as 
possible, endeavour to remain within the contract sum and where possible 
identify potential savings and further grant opportunities during the course of 
the works without compromising the completed scheme. 
 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Members consider the increase in cost relative to the overall project value and 
the value of the TDC contribution towards the total and recommend to Full 
Council an increase in the allocation of additional funding of £361,000 exc. 
VAT to enable the project to be delivered within the CCF deadlines. 
 
That Members support Officers in the pursuit of additional grants and external 
funding to assist in making up the shortfall between the current funding 
secured and current project costs. 

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 
Ward Member and Lead Member Views 
 
Councillor Hodson – Despite the increase in costings for this project, I 
continue to support the development, having received assurance from the 
Officers that all risks have been assessed and plans for mitigation are in 
place. 
 
Ward Members – supportive as discussed at the Property Group. 
Ward Members – supportive as discussed at the Property Group. 

Page 48



 
  

 
 
 Officers Consulted 

Senior Management Team  
Northam Burrows Ranger 
 

 

 Contact Officer - Adrian Redwood, Property and Procurement Manager. 
 

 

Page 49



 

 
  

REPORT OF Planning and Economy Manager 

To: Community and Resources Committee 

Subject: Northam Burrows Visitor Centre 

Date: 2nd October 2019 Reference: Part 2 

 
 
 
Confidential or Exempt Information - Not for Publication by virtue of Paragraph of Part 1 and 
Paragraph 3 of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:    To inform members about progress towards delivery of the new 
Northam Burrows Visitor Centre (providing details of the aims and objectives, business case, 
environmental and tourism benefits, targets, funding, spend to date and community support for the 
project) as requested by the Property and Major Projects Working Group on the 20th August 2019. 
 

 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
 Since 2015 the Council has been developing proposals for a new and improved Northam 

Burrows Visitor Centre.  The initial concept for a new centre was conceived as a result of 
visitor and community feed back that the offer of the current centre was limited and that 
users of the  Burrows would benefit from additional facilities and attraction as well as greater 
education about the importance of the environment. 

  
 

 
2. REPORT 

 
What is the aim of the project? 
 
We aim to increase and extend year-round nature-based tourism visits to a unique natural 
area through the development of a new interpretation centre and activity hub with marked 
trails, a programme of community-led bookable events and activities, improved links to 
neighbouring communities, and support for local businesses to benefit from new visitor 
markets. The project will benefit 180 local businesses, create 90 jobs and support 
construction-related jobs (equiv.15 person years). 
 
We will work closely with a range of key partners, including North Devon Coast AONB and 
North Devon UNESCO Biosphere Reserve, within which the site is located, Bideford CCT, 
Northam Town Council, Westward Ho! Business Association and North Devon +. 
 
What will the project do and how will it benefit the area? 
 
Northam Burrows is a unique coastal feature and Country Park, comprising 258 hectares of 
dunes/grassy coastal plain and salt marsh between the market town of Northam and the 
sea. Its seaward limit is marked by the nationally significant pebble ridge and Westward Ho! 
beach. The Burrows is a SSSI, lying within an AONB, a UNESCO Biosphere Reserve and 
on the South West Coast Path. 
 
This project will create a new interpretation centre and activity hub for nature-based tourism 
(tourism based upon viewing and experiencing the natural environment) within Northam 

Page 50



 

 
  

Burrows for the benefit of the area on the footprint of an existing field centre, which has very 
limited and dated facilities. The new ‘Burrows Centre’ will provide: 
 
• Permanent and temporary exhibition space, with displays interpreting the important 

flora, fauna, geology and history of the area. 
• A new café with viewing areas.  
• A range of signed and interpreted trails e.g. nature, geology, WWII history. 
• Flexible space for community use, events, lectures, cultural performances.  
• Signed links to and from neighbouring communities (Westward Ho!, Appledore, 

Bideford), including travel plans for public transport links to Bideford and the railway 
station at Barnstaple. 

• Facilities for beach users. 
• Business support for existing and new-start tourism-related business to help them 

benefit from a new nature-based tourism proposition. 
• A part-time officer to develop the nature tourism market in partnership with AONB 

and Biosphere Reserve, recruit new volunteers, and community engagement. 
• A new programme and website for year-round bookable events and guided activities 

e.g. for wildlife/marine enthusiasts, bird watchers, walkers, cyclists. 
• Training for locals/young people to develop and run their own bookable activities.  
• Information desk and office space for the Country Park Ranger team. 

 Commercial space to let for related user groups and commercial catering / café 
concession for income generation. 

 
The proposed building is of innovative design incorporating a number of environmental 
technologies, including air-source heat pumps, high levels of insulated fabric, natural 
ventilation.  
 
The project is community-led, driven by feedback from visitors and close working with 
community representatives, businesses, the AONB Partnership, and has strong support from 
Bideford CCT and Westward Ho! Business Association.  
 
The project will benefit our coastal community by: 
• Increasing understanding and respect for the natural environment, whilst creating 

new economic and employment opportunities for the community.  
• Developing new year-round visitor markets.  
• Directly supporting local businesses to grow and assisting the community to develop 

bookable tourism experiences with new self-employment opportunities. 
• Developing a resource which residents can enjoy as well as visitors to enhance 

quality of life. 
• By playing a central role in the development and delivery of the project. 
 
A full Business Plan for the project is attached as Appendix 1.        
 
Why is the Burrows Centre needed? 
 
• The area is in great need of economic growth. Incomes are very low - in 2017 

Torridge average gross workplace pay was the second lowest in the UK (ASHE, 
2017). 

• Productivity is historically low, lower than neighbouring Cornwall, holding back 
employment/incomes – in 2010 estimated GVA/capita was only 53.8% of the UK 
average (CE/IER Estimates, 2010). 

• The community has great dependence upon tourism (recognised within the Northern 
Devon Economic Strategy) – there are few other employment opportunities within the 
coastal communities. 

Page 51



 

 
  

• Yet tourism in the area has largely missed out on the ‘staycation effect’ and is in 
decline – while neighbouring North Devon has seen the value of overnight visits grow 
c. 1/3  since 2008, in Torridge it has fallen (TSWRC, 2016). 

• The Bideford CCT Economic Plan focuses on stimulating growth through the 
development of tourism and the visitor economy. 

• We know that nature-based tourism is a high value, growth visitor market and 
represents a great opportunity for the area – in Scotland, spending on nature-based 
activities is c.40% of all tourism spending (Scottish Natural Heritage 2010). 

• We also know that the high quality natural environment is the number one key 
attraction for visitors to the area (Northern Devon Visitor Survey, 2017) 

• Northam Burrows is an ideal focal point for developing nature-based tourism – it is a 
unique coastal/geological feature; an established Country Park (footfall 300,000p.a.); 
an important ecological site, a SSSI, a key site within the North Devon AONB and 
UNESCO Biosphere Reserve; has proximity to the internationally important Lundy 
Island (ferry links from Bideford) and England’s first Marine Nature Reserve and 
Marine Conservation Zone; boasts the district’s largest beach (Blue Flag Award) and 
lies on the South West Coast Path. 

• During the Summer season of 2019 staff at the existing Burrows Centre conducted a 
footfall survey.  Between May the 25th to September the 1st there were 6330 visitors 
to the centre. This does not include school visits and this year we have had 1173 
pupils so far and still have a few bookings to fulfil.  The existing field centre is 
outdated, in poor condition and unsuited as a modern visitor centre – visitor surveys 
show 35% wanted improved facilities. 

 
 
The many letters of support for the project that were received (including letters from Geoffrey 
Cox MP, Ward Member Cllr Laws and Royal North Devon Golf Club) are attached as 
Appendix 2.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



 

 
  

Will the project create jobs? 
 
The Burrows Centre project is expected to support 180 businesses and lead to the creation 
of 90.25 jobs. 32.5 direct jobs through new staff within the café (12 FTE), the appointment of 
a part-time Project Officer (0.5) and new businesses started with the assistance of the 
project’s business support (20). These are expected to be permanent jobs.  
 
The Project Officer role will commence at the outset of the project to start to engage with the 
community and businesses as part of the market development work. The café jobs (12 FTE) 
would be created in time for the opening of the new Centre, and business start-ups following 
receipt of advice during the second year. 
 
A further 57.75 FTE indirect jobs within tourism-related businesses, as a consequence of 
new and extended visits to the area after 3 years of opening (i.e. by March 2024). This 
forecast is based upon projected increased visitors, average daily expenditure figures, 
assumptions around additional nights and day visits, and utilises VisitBritain accepted 
methodologies for projecting jobs as a consequence of raised visitor spend.  
 
Additionally, construction-related jobs will be supported during the build phase: the 
equivalent of 15 person years (estimate based upon Scottish Government Input-Output 
model coefficients and multipliers). 
 
Project Costs 
 

Item Bid Values £ Current Values £ 
New Build 1,496,032 1,626,318 

Fixtures, Fittings and 
Equipment 

10,070 32,000 

Professional Fees 203,500 265,000 

Surveys 8,600 9,000 

Other Costs 126,000 126,000 

Inflation 94,250 96,926 

Construction Contract 
Contingency 

157,000 Included in New Build 

Total 2,095,452 2,155,244 
 
Project Funding 
 

Source £ 
Coastal Communities Fund 1,200,000 

TDC  955,399 

Total  2,155,399 
 
Note – there is additional funding from the Stewardship Payment Plan, which is to fund the 
costs of interpretation displays, trail markers, signage and other associated costs.  
 
 
 
Spend to Date and Committed Spend 
 
£17,000 has been spent too date and £150,000 received from the Coastal Communities 
Fund (CCF)  as the first tranche payment. 
 

Page 53



 

 
  

NB. These current costs are based on the September 2919 updated cost plan taking into 
account the developed design and value engineering work completed at that time. The costs 
are not based on any formal tendered returns that will be reflective of the market rate 
achieved at that time. 
 
Ongoing Revenue / Running Costs and Income Generation 
 
The current net revenue cost (2019-20 Budget) for running the existing facility is £23k and it 
should be noted that there is presently no income generated as a result of its operation. 
 
Within the original business plan submitted for the application to CCF to bid for funding a 
cash flow projection was prepared forecasting the future income and costs of the facility.  
This forecast the following: 
 

 Additional income - £131k (largely gate receipts £85k: inclusive of an increase to £5 
entry from £4 and Café, office rents and lease) 

 Additional costs - £38k ( including 0.5 FTE and other operating costs) 
 

Thus generating additional income to Torridge of some £93k 
 
Whilst the project has developed the income and costs have been revisited using more up to 
date comparisons and knowledge as follows: 
 

 Additional income - £78k (recognising no increase in gate fee and up to date rental / 
lease income) 

 Additional costs - £38k (as before) 
 

Therefore reducing the overall additional income to £40k per annum and it is worth noting 
that the additional gate fees account for £49k therefore would only need to be at £9k to 
break even. 
 
Building Design 
 
Detailed Planning was granted for the new building in August 2018. 
 

Page 54



 

 
  

 
 
 

 
Access and Flooding 
 
The new Burrows Centre is to be constructed upon the footprint of the existing building.  This 
is situated on the area of the Burrows highest above sea level. Analysis of the anticipated 
increase in sea level predicted over the next 100 years have been taken into account in the 
design of the new building. The floor level of the new facility will be approximately 300mm 
higher than the existing floor levels, thereby obviating the risks associated with any predicted 
increases. 
 
Coastal erosion is recognised as a threat to Northam Burrows in the Shoreline Management 
plan.  The plan predicts that in the worst case scenario coastal erosion will affect the site in 
approximately 50yrs to 85yrs if there is no management intervention 
 
It is also recognised that the access road to the Burrows Centre occasionally floods in the 
worst weather conditions and with the highest tides.  Records indicate that this is a relatively 
infrequent occurrence rendering the centre inaccessible by car for a few weeks of the year at 
most. 
 
After concern was expressed about access in such events at the recent Property and Major 
Projects Working Group a visit was organised to the Burrows to inspect accessibility on the 
1st October at 8am (High Tide).  Conditions were near their worst for flooding with a brisk on 
shore wind, the highest spring tides of the year, strong wave action topping the ridge and 
following a sustained period of heavy rainfall (Flood Warning active). 
 
As the photos show access was achieved by car (not off road vehicle) without concern but it 
is acknowledged that water levels in Sandymere lake were very high and there was a few 
inches of water covering the road on the lowest point at the bend before the car park. 

Page 55



 

 
  

 
Modest improvements to the access road and parking area could further mitigate flood risk 
for those periods of the worst weather when accessibility is an issue.  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 56



 

 
  

As you can see other parts of the Burrows were very wet indeed. 
 

 

 
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal Implications 
 
As the project is primarily aimed at enhancements to property owned by the District Council, 
advice from the Council's in-house Legal and Financial teams who have experience in State 
Aid has confirmed that State Aid does not apply for this project.  
The Council has received no funding in the last three years that was classed as State Aid.  

Page 57



 

 
  

 
Financial Implications 
 
As contained in the report. 
   
Human Resources Implications 
 
The project will be delivered by the current in house teams working together across the 
various departments. 
In addition a part time Nature Tourism Officer Post will be created to ensure that the full 
Tourism benefits of the project and the Burrows as a whole are maximised 
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
 
The project is being designed with the intention to achieve a BREEAM rating of Very Good. 
This is extremely difficult to obtain given the environmental constraints associated with this 
particular site and a rating of Good is therefore a more realistic expectation at this stage. 
 
Equality/Diversity 
 
In accordance with Council policy. 
 
Risk Management 
 
The building has been granted planning permission. 
 
A comprehensive risk management matrix was developed as a condition of the CCF Bid 
process. This is a live document that has been tracked and risks are being designed out or 
mitigated wherever possible. 
 
The costs included within the report for both Capital Construction and ongoing Revenue are 
the best estimates computed with information at the time of drafting the report.  Members 
should note that they are subject to change and in particular the necessary procurement 
processes. 
  
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
 
As well as complete alignment with the Council’s strategic priority to develop and strong and 
prosperous economy, the project also supports: 
 
• Northern Devon Tourism Strategy 2018-22  – three key themes each supported by 

this project: (a) ‘developing the tourism product’, particularly linking with the high 
quality natural environment; (b) ‘engaging/connecting with visitors’; and (c) 
‘developing capacity and capabilities’ of the sector to take advantage of opportunities 
for growth.  

• Northern Devon Economic Strategy 2014-20 – recognises tourism as the main 
sector within coastal communities north of Bideford, upon which there is high 
dependency, characterised by highly seasonal low paid employment. This project 
specifically aligns with Priority P1B2: ‘development of coastal and harbourside 
infrastructure for tourism/leisure uses.’ 

• Heart of the South West (HOTSW) LEP Strategic Economic Plan 2014-30 – the 
high quality environment is recognised as a key economic driver and tourism as a 
transformational opportunity to deliver growth. This project supports each of three 
core aims: (a) ‘capitalising on our distinctive assets’ (local environmental assets); (b) 
‘creating the conditions for growth’ (investment in infrastructure); and (c) ‘maximising 

Page 58



 

 
  

productivity and employment’ (encouraging longer and out of season visits to deliver 
growth and employment). 

• HOTSW Productivity Strategy 2018 – key themes are ‘inclusive growth for 
communities and places’ and ‘capitalising on our distinctive assets’, both of which are 
supported by this project. 

 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
 
The project will be delivered in line with current policies. 
 
Climate Change 
 
The detailed design development is progressing with due consideration for climate change. 
As noted above the decision has already been taken to increase the floor level by 300mm 
and further consideration is being given to the potential to increase the thermal performance 
of the building and introduce renewable energy options where possible.  
We are attempting to future-proof the design as part of our robust review of anticipated use 
patterns for the premises. 
 
Ward Member and Lead Member Views 
  
While I am not familiar with the fine details of the project I am very supportive of the concept 
of creating a centre of excellence for environmental education within one of our most 
important environments.  I especially like the ambition in trying to make more of our 
environment in developing tourism in the area in a sustainable way. The additional facilities 
and café will be a real improvement to the current, unsuitable, Burrows Centre.  
 
Councillor Cottle-Hunkin 
 
 
Date of Consultation – 04/10/19 
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 
 

The Burrows Centre project is a fully funded proposal, with planning consent that represents 
the ambition of the District Council to both improve the economy of the area and educate 
people on conservation of the very special environment.   This point has been recognised by 
MHCLG who granted £1.2Million of Coastal Communities funding for its delivery. 
 
The project is widely supported by both the local business community and environmentalists. 
 
 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 That members note the contents of the report and that further progress reports on the 

delivery of the new Burrows Centre are added to the forward plan. 
 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Consultations: Date of Consultation – 

Officers Consulted - 

Page 59



 

 
  

 Contact Officer: Sean Kearney 
Adrian Redwood 

 Background Papers:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



 
  

REPORT OF Customer Support Manager 

To: Community & Resources 

Subject: Refugee Resettlement 

Date: 16 March 2020 Reference:  

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: Participation in the UK Government Refugee Resettlement 
Scheme. 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 In 2015 the government launched the Syrian Vulnerable Persons Relocation 

Scheme (SVPRS) with the aspiration of accepting 20,000 Syrian refugees. The 
government looked to local authorities to provide housing and integration support for 
families accepted for resettlement.  

 
In addition and in response from individuals and communities wishing to support the 
relocation of refugees the government also introduced `Community Sponsorship`. 
This ran in parallel with the local authority managed schemes and provided a 
mechanism for community groups to provide accommodation and support for a 
minimum period of 2 years subject to meeting the requirements set by central 
government. 
 
Since 2016 refugee resettlement within Devon has been delivered through a 
partnership of District and City councils coordinated by Devon County Council. As of 
December 2019, 42 families (185 individuals) have been resettled in Devon via direct 
offers of accommodation from partners and community sponsorship. 

 
 At a meeting of this committee held on 18 April 2016 Members resolved to support 

the provision of community sponsorship only. To date, two families have been 
successfully relocated within Torridge by TARKA Community sponsorship. 

  
 
2. REPORT 

The existing scheme (SVPRS) is due to end during 2020 once the initial target of 
20,000 has been achieved and will be seamlessly replaced by a new Global 
Resettlement Scheme (GRS). The only significant change between the current 
SVPRS and the new GRS is that it is no longer restricted to Syrian nationals. The 
government has set a target for the financial year 20/2021 to resettle a further 5,000 
refugees and is looking to local authorities across the UK to provide accommodation 
and support. 
 
Unlike some partners, Torridge no longer holds a housing stock and as such is 
reliant on the providers of social housing and the private sector for the provision of 
accommodation for our statutory homeless duties. There is already a shortfall of 
`affordable` housing within Torridge e.g., within the Northern Devon Local Housing 
Allowance (LHA) rates. 
 

Page 61

Agenda Item 13



 
  

The Government has confirmed their commitment to provide funding of £20,520 per 
resettled refugee which is tapered over 5 years. The funding is intended to cover 
direct costs in delivering resettlement; this will continue to be administered through 
the existing partnership.  
 
As of February 2020 a typical three bedroom property within Bideford costs between 
£700 to £775 per calendar month to rent from the private sector which is equivalent 
to £161.53 to £178.84 per week and significantly more than the applicable LHA. 
 

3. IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal Implications 
There is no legal requirement to participate in either the SVPRS or the new GRS. 
 
Financial Implications 
Should the Council commit to providing accommodation and support to a refugee(s) 
and accommodation cannot be sought that is affordable e.g. within the LHA then the 
Council would need to meet the shortfall. The LHA rates from 1 April 2020 are (per 
week): 
 
Shared Accommodation Rate:  £65.20  
One Bedroom Rate:    £93.61  
Two Bedrooms Rate:    £117.03 
Three Bedrooms Rate:   £140.43  
Four Bedrooms Rate:   £171.32  
 
Additional staff resource may also be required to provide support and would be 
commensurate to the number refugees resettled. The annual cost of a housing 
support officer is currently £25,239 including on costs. 
 
Human Resources Implications 
Any direct offer of accommodation may require additional housing support form the 
Housing Options Team.  
 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
The direct provision of any accommodation provided by the Council will not be 
sustainable if refugee(s) fail to find employment. 
 
Equality/Diversity 
The Council has a statutory obligation to provide Homelessness Services to any 
applicant that meets the legal requirement. 
 
Risk Management 
There is already a shortage of affordable housing in Torridge e.g. within the LHA 
rates to meet the demand of customers either threatened with homelessness or are 
already homeless. 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
The government has passed legislation to allow refugees resettled under either the 
SVPRS or GRS to access welfare benefits and support administered at both a local 
and national level. 

Page 62



 
  

 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
None identified, all customer records are held securely and held for as long as is 
required and are only accessible by authorised staff that have a legitimate reason to 
access. 
 
Climate Change 
The EPC rating of any property provided by the Council for the purpose of refugee 
resettlement would need to be included within the Councils carbon foot print. 
 
Lead Member Views 
Councillor Claire Hodson (Customer Support) 
Date of Consultation: 06 March 2020 
 
Whilst I recognise the shortage of LHA properties available within the District I would 
suggest the Council offers to allocate one property in each of the two years of the 
scheme to house a refugee family.   
 
In 2016 after some debate it was decided simply to offer inspection of identified 
properties selected by Community support groups to confirm whether they were fit 
for occupation. 
 
I hope that this new Council will take the positive steps, to seek out and offer a home 
to a family and join with other Devon Authorities in sharing our several responsibility 
in responding to the global refugee crisis. Furthermore, I would recommend that we 
engage with TARKA community sponsorship to facilitate access to support services 
to ensure that there is a successful resettlement into our community. 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 
 There continues to be broad support across the South West from Councils and 

Community Sponsorship groups to support the resettlement of refugees. 
 
 This Council has previously confirmed support via community sponsorship only, 

which has been successfully delivered with little involvement and at no cost to the 
Council by TARKA community sponsorship led by Doctor Brian Walker. 

 
 Any direct offer of accommodation and support made by the Council is likely to have 

both a financial and resource implication. 
 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that Members: 
 
1.) Confirm participation or not in the Global Resettlement Scheme via the direct 

provision of accommodation and if applicable confirm the number of 
properties/refugees the Council will accommodate and support. 

2.) Confirm ongoing support or not of Community Sponsorship only. 
 

 

Page 63



 
  

 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Consultations: None 

 
 Contact Officer: Simon Toon  x8980 

 Background Papers:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



 
  

REPORT OF Customer Support Manager 

To: Community & Resources 

Subject: Business Rates Public House and Retail Relief Policy 

Date: 16th March 2020 Reference:  

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To request Members approval of a policy for Business Rates Public 
House and Retail Relief Policy 
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
Following the General Election on 12th December 2019, the government announced plans to 
increase the reliefs available for Retail Businesses and for Public Houses. These increases were 
confirmed in a Written Ministerial Statement on 27th January 2020. 
 
The statement confirmed that Retail Relief for properties with a rateable value of less than £51,000 
would be increased from 33% to 50% for 2020/21 only. Public Houses with a rateable value of less 
than £100,000 will be eligible to receive a £1,000 discount for the year 2020/21. 
 
It was confirmed the government will fully reimburse local authorities for the local share of the reliefs 
(using a grant under section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003) The government expects local 
authorities to apply and grant relief to qualifying businesses from the start of the 20/21 billing cycle. 
 
2. REPORT 
 
Retail Relief  
 
Properties that will benefit from the relief will be occupied hereditaments with a rateable value of  
less than £51,000, that are wholly or mainly being used as retail establishments.  
 
The list set out in the attached policy is not intended to be exhaustive as it would be impossible to 
list the many and varied retail uses that exist. There will also be mixed uses. However, it is intended 
to be a guide as to the types of uses that Government considers for this purpose to be retail.  
Business Rates Officers would use this list to determine for themselves whether particular 
properties not listed are broadly similar in nature to those above and, if so, to consider them eligible 
for the relief. Conversely, properties that are not broadly similar in nature to those listed would not 
be eligible for the relief.  
 
The Business Rate Team has undertaken a preliminary analysis of hereditaments they believe fulfil 
the criteria set out by Government. Of those retail hereditaments that pay Business Rates, we have 
identified 141 businesses that may benefit from this relief. These businesses will receive the relief 
on their 2020/21 Annual Bills and will be asked to complete a declaration to confirm they are eligible 
under State Aid Regulations. 
 
Public House Relief 
 
Properties that will benefit from the relief will be occupied hereditaments with a rateable value of 
less than £100,000. The majority of pubs are likely to be independently owned or managed and will 
not be part of chains. Where pubs are part of a chain, relief will be available for each eligible 
property in the chain, subject to meeting State Aid requirements. 
 

Page 65

Agenda Item 14



 
  

There is not a definitive description of a traditional pub or public house in law which could be readily 
used by local authorities to determine eligibility. However the government believes billing authorities 
will already have a good understanding of the licensed premises in their areas and will be able to 
readily form a view on eligibility in the majority of cases.  
 
The Business Rate Team has undertaken a preliminary analysis of hereditaments they believe fulfil 
the criteria set out by Government. Of those public houses that pay Business Rates, we have 
identified 32 businesses that may benefit from this relief. These businesses with receive the relief 
on their 2020/21 Annual Bills and will be asked to complete a declaration to confirm they are eligible 
under State Aid Regulations. 
 

 
3. IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
 
The Council is required to have an approved local policy to administer these reliefs. 

 
Financial Implications 
 
The Council will be reimbursed for this relief. 

 
Human Resources Implications 
 
None 

 
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 
 
None identified. 

 
Equality/Diversity 
 
The proposals within this report comply with the guidance issued by Central Government. 

 
Risk Management 
 
None identified. 

 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
 
The proposals within this report comply with the guidance issued by Central Government. 
 
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 
 
All customer records are held securely and held for as long as is required and are only 
accessible by authorised staff that have a legitimate reason to access. 
 
Climate Change 
 
None identified. 

 
 Lead Member Views – Counciller Hodson 
 
I support the recommendation for the identified and Government prescribed rate reliefs for   
20/21 billing cycle. I do this with the knowledge that these losses in income will be fully 
reimbursed by a grant to this Council ( section 31 Local Government Act 2003). 

Page 66



 
  

Date of Consultation – 14th February 2020 
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 
 The retail and public house relief referred to in this report are designed to support those 

businesses that have been impacted by changing consumer behaviours. The attached 
policies will ensure that these reliefs are issued in accordance with government guidance. 

 
 
5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 It is recommended that Members approve the attached policies in order that we comply with 

government policy and are able to award reliefs to those businesses identified for the 
financial year 2020/21. 

 
 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Consultations: Date of Consultation – 

Officers Consulted - 
 Contact Officer: Karina Baird NNDR & Income Team Leader 

 Background Papers: Both proposed Policies attached 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Torridge District Council 

 

Business Rates Pubs Discount Policy 

For the financial year 2020/21 

For public houses that are: 

1.  Occupied with a Rateable Value less that £100,000 

2. Wholly or mainly being used as pubs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1st April 2020 

Page 68



Introduction 

In a Written Ministerial Statement on 27
th
 January 2020 the Government announced a 

Business Rates Pubs Discount scheme for occupied public houses with a rateable value 
of less than £100,000 in each of the financial year 2020-21. 
 
This relief should be applied after all other mandatory reliefs and other discretionary 
reliefs funded by section 31 grants have been applied.  
 
As this is a measure for 2020-21 only, the Government is not changing the legislation 
around the reliefs available to properties. Instead the Government will reimburse local 
authorities for the local share of the discretionary relief (using a grant under section 31 of 
the Local Government Act 2003). 
 
Local authorities will be asked to provide an estimate of their likely total cost for 
providing the relief in a supplementary return for 2020/21. The Government expects us 
to apply and grant relief to qualifying ratepayers from the start of the 2020/21 billing 
cycle. 
 

Properties that will benefit from relief 
 
Properties that will benefit from the relief will be occupied hereditaments with a rateable 
value of less than £100,000, that are wholly or mainly being used as public house 
establishments. The majority of pubs are independently owned or managed and will not 
be part of chains. Where pubs are part of a chain, relief will be available for each eligible 
property in the chain, subject to meeting State Aid requirements. (200,000 euros) 
 
There is no definitive description of a traditional pub or public house in law which could 
be readily used by local authorities to determine eligibility. The objective has been to 
adopt an approach that makes the design and eligibility of the scheme easy to 
implement by local authorities in a clear and consistent way, is widely accepted by the 
industry and which is consistent with the Government’s policy intention as set out in this 
section.  
 
The Government’s policy intention is that eligible pubs should: 
 • be open to the general public  
• allow free entry other than when occasional entertainment is provided  
• allow drinking without requiring food to be consumed  
• permit drinks to be purchased at a bar.  
 
For these purposes, it should exclude:  
• restaurants  
• cafes  
• nightclubs  
• hotels  
• snack bars  
• guesthouses  
• boarding houses  
• sporting venues  
• music venues  
• festival sites  
• theatres  

Page 69



• museums  
• exhibition halls  
• cinemas  
• concert halls  
• casinos  
 
The total amount of government-funded relief available in the year 2020/21 under this 

scheme is £1,000 per eligible property. There is no relief available under this scheme for 

properties with a rateable value of £100,000 or more. Eligibility for the relief and the relief 

itself will be assessed and calculated on a daily basis.  

This relief should be applied to bills after mandatory reliefs and other discretionary reliefs 

funded by section 31 grants have been applied, including the retail discount, but excluding 

those where local authorities have used their discretionary relief powers under section 47 

which are not funded by section 31 grants.  

Ratepayers that occupy more than one property will be entitled to relief for each of their 

eligible properties, subject to State Aid De Minimis limits.  

Conclusion 
 
The total amount of government-funded relief available for each property 2020/21 under 
this scheme is £1,000, after mandatory reliefs and other discretionary reliefs funded by 
section 31 grants have been applied, excluding those where local authorities have used 
their discretionary relief powers introduced by the Localism Act which are not funded by 
section 31 grants.  
 
There is no relief available under this scheme for properties with a rateable value of 
£100,000 or more. 
 
Ratepayers that occupy more than one property will be entitled to relief for each of their 
eligible properties, subject to State Aid De Minimis limits.  
 
 

 

 

 

Page 70



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Torridge District Council 

 

Business Rates Retail Discount Policy 

For the financial year 2020/21 

For retail properties that are: 

1.  Occupied with a Rateable Value less that £51,000 

2. Wholly or mainly being used as retail establishments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1st April 2020 

Page 71



Introduction 

The Government announced in the Budget on 29 October 2018 that it will provide a 
Business Rates Retail Discount scheme for occupied retail properties with a rateable 
value of less than £51,000 in each of the financial years 2019-20 and 2020-21. In a 
Written Ministerial Statement on 27

th
 January 2020 the Government announced it would 

extend the value of the Retail Discount from 33% to 50% in 2020/21.  
 
This relief should be applied after all other mandatory reliefs and other discretionary 
reliefs funded by section 31 grants have been applied.  
 
As this is a measure for 2020-21 only, the Government is not changing the legislation 
around the reliefs available to properties. Instead the Government will reimburse local 
authorities for the local share of the discretionary relief (using a grant under section 31 of 
the Local Government Act 2003). 
 
It is necessary that individual local billing authorities adopt a local scheme, in line with 
the guidance provided by Government. The Government expects us to apply and grant 
relief to qualifying ratepayers from the start of the 2020/21 billing cycle. 
 

Properties that will benefit from relief 
 
Properties that will benefit from the relief will be occupied hereditaments with a rateable 
value of less than £51,000, that are wholly or mainly being used as retail establishments. 
 
The list set out below is not intended to be exhaustive; however, it is intended to be a 
guide for authorities as to the types of uses that Government considers for this purpose 
to be retail. Authorities should determine for themselves whether particular properties 
not listed are broadly similar in nature to those above and, if so, to consider them eligible 
for the relief. 
 
i. Hereditaments that are being used for the sale of goods to visiting members of 
the public:  
 
− Shops (such as: florists, bakers, butchers, grocers, greengrocers, jewellers, stationers, 
off licences, chemists, newsagents, hardware stores, supermarkets, etc)  
− Charity shops  
− Opticians  
− Post offices  
− Furnishing shops/ display rooms (such as: carpet shops, double glazing, garage 
doors)  
− Car/ caravan show rooms  
− Second hand car lots  
− Markets  
− Petrol stations  
− Garden centres  
− Art galleries (where art is for sale/hire)  
 
 
ii. Hereditaments that are being used for the provision of the following services to 
visiting members of the public:  
 

Page 72



− Hair and beauty services (such as: hair dressers nail bars, beauty salons, tanning 
shops, etc)  
− Shoe repairs/ key cutting 
− Travel agents 
− Ticket offices e.g. for theatre 
− Dry cleaners 
− Launderettes 
− PC/ TV/ domestic appliance repair 
− Funeral directors 
− Photo processing 
− Tool hire 
− Car hire 
 
iii. Hereditaments that are being used for the sale of food and/ or drink to visiting 
members of the public: 
 
− Restaurants 
− Takeaways 
− Sandwich shops 
− Coffee shops 
− Pubs 
− Bars 
 
 
The list below sets out the types of uses that the Government does not consider to be 
retail use for the purpose of this relief.  
 
i. Hereditaments that are being used for the provision of the following services to 
visiting members of the public:  
 
− Financial services (e.g. banks, building societies, cash points, bureaux de change, 
payday lenders, betting shops, pawn brokers)  
− Other services (e.g. estate agents, letting agents, employment agencies)  
− Medical services (e.g. vets, dentists, doctors, osteopaths, chiropractors)  

Professional services (e.g. solicitors, accountants, insurance agents/ financial 
advisers, tutors)  
− Post office sorting offices  
 
ii. Hereditaments that are not reasonably accessible to visiting members of the 
public  
 
The government also does not consider other assembly or leisure uses beyond those 
listed to be retail uses for the purpose of the discount. For example, cinemas, theatres, 
museums, nightclubs, and hereditaments used for sport or physical recreation (eg gyms) 
are outside the scope of the scheme. Where there is doubt, the local authority should 
exercise their discretion with reference to the above and knowledge of their local tax 
base.  
 
 

 

Page 73



Conclusion 
 
The total amount of government-funded relief available for each property for the financial 
year  2020/21 under this scheme is 50% of the bill, after mandatory reliefs and other 
discretionary reliefs funded by section 31 grants have been applied, excluding those 
where local authorities have used their discretionary relief powers introduced by the 
Localism Act which are not funded by section 31 grants.  
 
There is no relief available under this scheme for properties with a rateable value of 
£51,000 or more. 
 
Ratepayers that occupy more than one property will be entitled to relief for each of their 
eligible properties, subject to State Aid De Minimis limits (200,000 euros) 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 74



Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Community & Resources Committees
	Draft Mins 3.2
	Mins pack 17.2
	Minutes


	3 Action List
	3 - Home Improvement Grants
	3a - Devon Group Q3 2019-20 Review

	5 Forward Plan
	9 The Plough Arts Centre
	10 Beach Access - Request for Funding
	11 Leisure Contract Options
	12 The Burrows Centre - Request for Additional Funding.
	11a - Appendix I Northam Burrows Report Sept 2019 Amended Version for March C&R

	13 Refugee Resettlement
	14 Business Rates Public House and Retail Relief Policy
	13a - Public House Relief Policy
	13b - Retail Relief Policy 2020-21

	17 Application for Hardship Relief

